
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Monday, 17th June, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5.  MINUTES 3 - 7

For Members to approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 8th 
April 2019.

6.  INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 4 REPORT 2018/19 8 - 22

To note the Internal Audit Quarter 4 report and evaluate the work 
undertaken by the Internal Audit Team.

Public Document Pack



7.  INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 23 - 44

To consider the Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/2019.

8.  INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL FRAUD REPORT 2018/19 45 - 65

To consider the Internal Audit Annual Fraud Report 2018/19.

9.  EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES 2019/20 66 - 69

For Members to consider the External Audit Fee’s for 2019/2020.

10.  RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 70 - 86

To consider the Risk Management Annual Report 2018/19.

Audit and Governance Committee Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor James Gartside Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Peter Malcolm Councillor Donna Martin E
Councillor Kathleen Nickson Councillor Aasim Rashid
Ann Taylor Andrew Underdown
Councillor Donna Williams

For more information about this meeting, please contact 

john.addison@Rochdale.Gov.UK



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 8th April 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Malcolm (in the Chair); Councillors Dale, Gartside, 
Martin, Nickson, and Wazir.

OFFICERS:  Anthony Harold – Head of Legal
Ian Corbridge – Head of Internal Audit
Stuart Smith – Head of Corporate Finance
Martin Nixon – Risk Manager
Peter Thompson – Governance and Committee Services

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: L. Cox (STAR Procurement), K. Murray and 
D. Watson (Mazars)

APOLOGIES
38 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hussain, 
Councillor Rashid, Mrs. A. Taylor (Independent Person) and Mr. A. 
Underdown (Independent Person).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
39 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
40 Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held 
17th December 2018 were approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.

UPDATE ON STAR PROCUREMENT
41 The Committee received a presentation from Lorraine Cox, Director of 
Procurement at STAR (Stockport, Tameside, Trafford and Rochdale) 
Procurement.

The presentation gave detailed information in relation to the following areas:-
 The STAR Governance Model (noting that STAR now had 39 

employees) 
 Business Plan 2017 – 2020
 Responsible Procurement Strategy
 Delivery Plan
 ‘5 star’ Measures (relating to: ‘commercial’, ‘communities’, 

‘compliance’, ‘champions’ and ‘collaborative’
 Communications and Marketing Strategy
 Rochdale’s Success to Date – in terms of dividends and savings 

accrued; 
 Raising the Profile of STAR including the possibility of extending the 

STAR brand beyond the current four local authorities;  

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Members considered the presentation in detail seeking clarification on: the 
proportion of expenditure that is exempt from VAT regulations; the STAR 
brand itself and the possibility of other local authorities joining the initiative; 
that STAR is providing ‘value for money’ for its contributing authorities.

Resolved:
1. that Lorraine Cox be thanked for her presentation on STAR 

procurement
2. a further presentation, updating Members of the activities of STAR 

procurement be scheduled for the Committee’s meeting on 16th 
December 2019.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
42 The Committee received an update report from representatives of 
Mazars, the organisation with responsibility for auditing the Council. The 
report provided an update on progress in the delivery of their responsibilities 
as the Council’s external auditors and it also presented the Audit Strategy 
Memorandum

Since reporting on progress at the Committee’s previous meeting on 17th 
December 2018, Mazars had completed their interim audit visit. This included 
early substantive testing in the following areas: Months 1–10 (March – 
January 2018/19) non-pay expenditure; Months 1–10 payroll expenditure; 
Months 1–10 fees and charges income; Existence and ownership testing of 
the Council’s property, plant and equipment and heritage asset balances; 
Agreement of opening ledger balances to the prior year financial statements.

The report found that there were no issues to bring to the Authority’s attention 
at this stage of their audit.

In considering the report Members of the Committee sought assurances in 
relation to measures that were being taken to counter fraud and on work that 
was being undertaken, by Mazars, in relation to their summary of the NHS 
long-term plan, insofar as it affects the Borough of Rochdale.

Resolved: 
That the update report be noted and welcomed. 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2018/19
43 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources that 
informed Members of the changes to accounting policies in respect of the 
2018/19 accounts.

Alternatives considered:
The Council’s Financial Regulations dictate that any changes to the Council’s 
accounting policies are required to be approved by the Audit and Governance 
Committee, therefore no alternatives were considered. Also, it was noted that 
if the accounting policies were not amended to reflect changes in financial 
reporting requirements, there would be a risk that the 2018/19 Statement of 
Accounts may be qualified.

Page 4



Resolved:
The amended accounting policies, detailed in the submitted report, be 
approved for implementation for the 2018/19 accounts.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q3 2018/19
44 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources that 
provided Members with a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during Quarter 3 of the 2018/19 year (October – December 2018). The report 
enabled the Committee, in accordance with its work programme and also 
allowing Members an oversight of governance, to make them better placed to 
scrutinise the Risk Management and Insurance Team’s coverage during the 
2018/19 year for all Council Services.

The Committee were informed that work towards the implementation of the 
new Pentana software system has progressed during the reporting period. 
However technical issues regarding data migration and system configuration 
had resulted in a delay to the originally planned launch date in April 2019. 

It was noted that the Insurance Team had achieved a claims cost mitigation 
figure of £1,216,328 for the 3rd quarter 2018/19.

In terms of risks it was reported that the demand for Children’s Social Care 
services continues to increase, leading to potential budgetary management 
issues. Likewise there was an increased demand for Adult Social Care 
Services with associated risks in terms of capacity, quality and business 
continuity.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 3 REPORT 2018/19
45 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Internal Audit that 
summarised the work of the Internal Audit team during the third quarter of 
2018/19 (October – December 2018). The Internal Audit team had been able 
to provide either substantial or adequate assurance over the effectiveness of 
risk management in all the audits completed during the period with the 
exception of one school which had received a limited assurance opinion due 
to weaknesses in their ‘control environment’. However, an action plan had 
subsequently been agreed with the school’s management which should 
ensure a more robust control environment is established going forward and 
the Head of Internal Audit Manager was able to verbally assure the 
Committee that this was indeed the case.

The Committee were advised that the Internal Audit team had completed 75% 
of its agreed Audit Plan and the head of Internal Audit verbally confirmed at 
the meeting that this team had achieved their targeted completion of the Audit 
Plan of 96% by 31st March 2019 (the end of the 2018/19 financial year).

Page 5



In addition the Counter Fraud Team had achieved £33,073 in identifying 
savings and overpayments during the period (£510,429 for the nine months to 
31st December 2018) together with two sanctions comprising two fines for 
fraud.

Further to Appendix B of the submitted report, the Head of Internal Audit 
assured Members that both he and the Chair of the Committee would pursue 
officers to ensure that the ‘Section 106 Planning Obligations’ were being 
carried out in an appropriate manner.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20
46 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Internal Audit which 
set out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20, that had been developed 
in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and with close liaison with the 
Council’s Senior Management team to identify and evaluate key areas of risk. 
A central aim of the Plan was to provide appropriate coverage of all Council 
services so as to ensure that an independent opinion could be given on the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes at the 
end of the year. 

The Internal Audit Plan provides for flexibility to allow for new and emerging 
areas of risk to be evaluated during the course of the year. The submitted 
report therefore sought to inform Audit and Governance Committee, in the 
context of the Members being charged with the overall responsibility for 
governance, of the proposed work programme of Internal Audit to facilitate 
approval of the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20.

Resolved: 
That the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 be approved.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
47 RESOLVED: that the public and press be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the next item of business on the grounds that 
discussions may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

IT DISASTER RECOVERY FOLLOW UP AUDIT
48 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Internal Audit which 
updated Members on a follow-up audit, of the ICT service, establishing that 
the five recommendations contained in the original audit report, prepared in 
June 2018, had been implemented.

The report of June 2018 was an audit assurance opinion of ‘Limited’ meaning 
that ‘A number of key risks were not being managed effectively.  The ‘RAG’ 
rating, for this report, was Red and the five specific recommendations, 
contained therein, were due to be implemented by no later than 31st March 
2019. As a result of actions taken since the report in June 2018 was issued, 

Page 6



the Internal Audit service was now able to provide adequate assurance that 
the risks which were identified were being managed appropriately, therefore a 
‘RAG’ rating of Amber had been issued.

The follow-up audit also covered issues relating to the Council-wide ICT 
downtime experienced in November 2018.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Page 7



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 17th June 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Quarter 4 Report 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the fourth 
quarter of 2018/19. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. Internal Audit also confirmed that the 
agreed actions relating to a school audit which had previously been given a 
limited assurance rating had now been completed and that the control 
environment had significantly improved since the audit. Furthermore, Internal 
Audit has completed 96% of the agreed Audit Plan which achieves the agreed 
target. 

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £18,358 in identifying savings and 
overpayments during the period (£528,787 for the year ended 31 March 2019) 
together with 1 sanction relating to a fine for fraud (19 sanctions for the full 
year). 

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for 
governance, to scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the fourth quarter 
of 2018/19 on all Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal 
Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1 

4.2

4.3

4.4

Risk Based Audit Approach

10. Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the 
internal control environment, risk management and governance 
processes for the Council as a whole, as set out within the Internal Audit 
Charter. A risk based approach is taken within individual audit reviews, 
embracing operational and management controls and the wider 
business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk 
identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to 
manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance 
opinion on how effectively risks are being managed in the area under 
review. These opinions are as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited
A number of key risks are not managed effectively. 
The control systems in operation are in need of 
significant improvement.

Adequate
The control systems in operation are generally 
sound. However, opportunities exist to improve the 
management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to 
manage risks effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with 
the assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a 
timely basis, any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited 
assurance will be highlighted within section 6 of this report. These will be 
subject to specific discussion and challenge by Members with senior 
officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, Internal Audit will perform a 
formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner if the due date for 
completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the Audit and 
Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm 
completion once the due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation 
will be reported to the Committee for further consideration. If some of the 
recommendations have not yet been actioned, Internal Audit will request 
reasons for the delay and confirmation of a revised date by which the 
action should be completed. The current status of the implementation of 
audit recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is 
highlighted within Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the 
Members. Whilst in some cases implementation has not been achieved by 

Page 9



4.5

5

5.1

6

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

the originally agreed dates, Internal Audit has received reasonable 
explanations to support the delays incurred and will continue to monitor 
progress through to the revised dates proposed by management. As such, 
there are no matters to bring to the attention of Members at this stage.

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 
responses to recommendations raised are received within one month of 
the issue date. Internal Audit actively follows up with management via an 
escalation process to ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a 
timely manner. At present, there are no draft reports where responses are 
still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Planned Work Completed During Quarter Four 

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed 
during quarter four which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance 
opinion. Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with 
a specific focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority.

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up 
Audits

Primary School Follow Up Audit
  (Director – Children’s Services)

In November 2018 an audit was undertaken on a primary school which 
highlighted weaknesses in fundamental internal controls and a limited 
assurance opinion was given. A substantial number of recommendations 
were made, including 2 of high priority and 11 of medium priority, to 
address improvements that needed to be made to the system of internal 
control to ensure it aligns with best practice. A subsequent follow up audit 
has confirmed that the agreed recommendations have now been 
implemented and the overall control environment has now improved 
significantly and is now assessed to be effective.

The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B. 

Unplanned work

Process for Recharges in a Nursery
  (Director – Neighbourhoods)

At the request of management, Internal Audit reviewed the processes and 
controls relating to the recharge of costs from a garden nursery to ensure 
they are complete, accurate and processed in a timely manner. Whilst the 
audit identified no specific concerns, various recommendations were made 
to both streamline and improve the supporting processes.  
 

Page 10



7.2

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

Integrity Due Diligence
  (Director – Neighbourhoods)

At the request of management Internal Audit was requested to undertake 
due diligence on various organisations involved in providing local support 
for the Dippy on Tour project to evaluate their integrity. No issues were 
identified in relation to the organisations concerned.

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from 
January to March 2019 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 197 fraud referrals were received in the fourth quarter of this 
financial year, compared to 224 from the same period in 2017/18. The 
ongoing level of referrals continues to be reviewed and various initiatives 
are currently being developed to generate more referrals in the future 
including fraud awareness training. The main sources of these referrals 
came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the Partnership Enforcement 
Team, anonymous information and RBC employees. A significant number 
of these do not progress to formal investigation by the team as they are 
either passed to the DWP or closed due to apparent malicious intent or the 
fact that there is not enough information to progress the matter. 

From January to March 2019 the team achieved £18,358 in additional 
savings and overpayments. This figure derives from successful 
investigations into transactions associated with a number of Service areas 
including Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge and Adult 
Care, as well as additional income from fraud financial penalties, 
administrative penalties and court costs. 

65% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in the fourth quarter, 
achieving 82% overall for the year. 

One sanction was achieved in quarter four, relating to a fine for fraud. 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.  

The Team has continued to check data received in the 2017/18 and 
2018/19 NFI Single Person Discount, Council Tax matches. Over £25,000 
in savings has been achieved from the NFI proactive visits. 

       
                                     

Page 11



8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

9

9.1

The NFI Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support work from 2016/2017 
has come to an end. The recommended matches have been checked and 
samples of the key reports have also been checked.  Housing Benefit 
savings of over £35,000 have been identified, as well as Council Tax 
Support savings of over £10,000. 

The latest wave of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction data 
matches were received from the Cabinet Office at the end of January 2019. 
These are also being worked through by the Counter Fraud Team in 
conjunction with the DWP where appropriate. There are no outcomes to 
report as yet although this may change once all matches are checked and 
investigations are complete.    

Rochdale Borough Council Business Rates Team and Counter Fraud 
Team have been participating in the Business Rates Fraud NFI Pilot. To 
date the Counter Fraud team have found savings of over £9,000.

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 
over 210 Data Protection Requests from January to March 2019, not 
including the work that is completed in the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, 
skills and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to 
prevent and detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-
agency teams attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; 
Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community 
Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; 
Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 47 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 
absconders. 14 fraud referrals were received from the PET in quarter four; 
7 are currently under investigation.      
  
The experienced investigators continue to participate in days of action and 
proactive visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council 
Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support. 
Investigators on the Fraud Team participated in two proactive exercises 
during quarter four.

Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 31 March 2019 against 
Internal Audit targets for the fourth quarter, including the actuals for 
2017/18. 

Page 12



9.2

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Year 

2017/18

Target 
Q4

2018/19

Actual 
Q4

2018/19
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£240 £260 £250

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor 
(days)

195 190 194

3. Percentage of audit plan 
completed (96% for full year)

96% 96% 96%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports 
issued within 14 days of 
completion of the audit

100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of 
marks in the top two categories 
(i.e. very good & good)

100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators were either achieved or were ahead of target for 
the period and for the year as a whole.  

10  Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit

10.1 Internal Audit continues to undertake audit work for a number of organisations 
in accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In 2018/19 to 31 March 2019 this has generated 
income of £3,410 and has included: 

 Audit of School Fund Accounts for 9 schools under Local Authority 
control; and

 Grant certification for an Academy.

Costs and Budget Summary

11. Not applicable.

Page 13



Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

12.

Consultation

13. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 14



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter four

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Care Sensory Team The Sensory Team provide social care support and rehabilitation services 
to people who are deaf, hard of hearing, blind and visually impaired. The 
team has a duty under the Care Act 2014 to ensure that service users care 
arrangement will meet their needs effectively. The objective of the audit 
was to provide assurance on the adequacy of controls in place to ensure 
compliance with agreed policies, procedures and the Care Act 2014.

The audit provided substantial assurance that overall controls are sound. 
However it was noted that whilst assessments are effective, there is a 
need to improve their timeliness. This is something that has since been 
addressed through a restructure of existing resource.

Substantial M – 1, 
L – 1 

Adult Care ContrOCC ContrOCC is the system used by Adult Care to make payments to care 
providers and charge users. It also interfaces with the ALLIS case 
management system and is considered to be one of the Council’s 
fundamental financial systems in view of the volume and value of 
transactions processed through it annually. This audit focused on the IT 
controls over the system including those relating to access, interface, 
effectiveness of audit trails, maintenance and compliance with GDPR.

Whilst overall controls are considered effective, it has been identified that 
following the introduction of GDPR, there is a need for ContrOCC to be 
data cleansed to remove redundant service user information from the 
system to ensure ongoing compliance with legislation. At the time of the 
audit there was no implementation plan but this is now being progressed. It 
was also noted that IT access for new starters should only be awarded in a 
bespoke manner to ensure it aligns with the level of  access each staff 
member actually requires.

Adequate H – 1,
M – 1

P
age 15



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Care Provider Portal 
Payments

Adult Care services make payments to companies who provide non-
residential (home care) to the Authority’s service users. The companies 
are paid based on the actual hours care assistants have delivered and this 
data is now uploaded to a portal to facilitate payment. The audit focused 
on providing assurance that controls and processes over such payments 
are effective and that appropriate monitoring arrangements are in place.

Whilst controls overall were evaluated to be adequate a number of 
improvements to the supporting systems and processes are necessary 
based on the results of audit work performed. A number of errors were 
highlighted in relation to the data input into the system in relation to hours 
of care provided as well as some errors in payments being made. As such 
it appeared in some cases that contractual terms were not being complied 
with. As a result discussions are being held with ICT Services to further 
develop the systems and with suppliers to enhance data capture, with 
additional financial reconciliations, controls and reporting being developed 
within Adult Care to ensure the ongoing accuracy of payments and 
identification of any anomalies. Whilst the errors identified were not 
significant in terms of overall value, Internal Audit will perform a follow up 
audit in 2019 to confirm that all agreed actions have been completed in a 
timely and effective manner.

Adequate H – 4 ,
M – 2,
L – 1  

P
age 16



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Care Pen Pictures The commissioning Pen Picture (CPP) is a process by which service user 
information, service required and needs and outcomes to be achieved are 
distributed to approved providers. Responses from providers are then 
assessed by Care Managers and a decision reached on the provider to be 
selected following consultation with family/ carers. The objective of the 
audit was to evaluate arrangements in place governing the compilation of 
CPPs and that their use is an efficient and effective approach to 
commissioning.

Whilst the CPP process appeared to be straight forward and working 
reasonably well, the effectiveness of the process appeared to be impaired 
by the low level of responses from potential providers plus the lack of 
specific detail within some of those responses. Management are therefore 
committed to measures to improve the level of engagement with providers 
with support from STAR, together with improvements to the overall CPP 
process to facilitate the measurement of progress against objectives, 
consider improvement/ changes and to agree action plans for 
implementation.

Adequate H – 1,
M – 5,
L – 2 

P
age 17



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s General Data 
Protection 

Regulations 
(GDPR) in 
Schools

Internal Audit evaluated the GDPR arrangements in schools to provide 
assurance that processes have been embedded and appropriate 
arrangements are in place to manage and control the risks associated with 
GDPR. The audit was based on visits to a sample of 6 schools within the 
Borough.

Whilst overall compliance with GDPR was assessed as adequate, a 
number of areas were identified where processes should be improved to 
enhance overall compliance with legislation. These issues were shared 
both with the individual school concerned but also to all schools via a 
global report summarising outcomes which was shared with all schools 
with agreement of service based management. Attached to the report was 
a checklist of best practice which we advised schools to consider and 
review against their own practices in order to ensure they have appropriate 
arrangements in place to evidence the school is GDPR compliant.

Adequate Not applicable

Public Health and 
Wellbeing

Sexual Health 
Contract 

Management

RBC, acting as lead contractor in conjunction with Oldham and Bury 
Councils, has commissioned an external partner to deliver an integrated 
sexual health service to address the health needs and maximise the 
sexual health and well-being of the population. The contract ensures that 
costs incurred by each Council relate only to residents of that Borough. 
The audit focused on the effectiveness of contract management processes 
focusing on contract management, measurement of success, risk 
management and monitoring and payment of out of area charges.

The audit confirmed that comprehensive processes are in place to support 
performance measurement and monitoring, reporting and payment 
mechanisms and no recommendations were considered necessary.

Substantial None 

P
age 18



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Creditors The objective of the audit was to provide assurance that goods and 
services are being ordered and procured in line with financial regulations, 
including controls over new supplier set up, raising of purchase orders, 
processing of invoices, systems access and payment requests. Data 
interrogation software was also used to identify potential duplicate records 
or unusual trends in creditor data.

Internal Audit concluded that controls within the core systems were 
effective. However there were still some processes associated with users 
of the system which required improvement including the need to:

 Ensure orders are formally raised for all purchases in order to 
generate financial commitments and enhance budgetary control;

 Ensure supplier invoices are appropriately addressed; and
 Ensure suppliers provide invoices to support claims for payment.

Substantial M – 3 

Resources Business Rates The objective of the audit was to ensure business rates billing 
arrangements are robust, payments are promptly processed, property 
reliefs are applied correctly and any refunds are appropriate and 
authorised.

Internal Audit provided substantial assurance that billing arrangements are 
effective and associated transactions align with regulations and agreed 
policies.

Substantial L – 1 

P
age 19



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Various Grant 
Certifications

Certain grants available to RBC require periodic certification to confirm that 
the grants have been spent in accordance with grant terms and conditions. 
These certifications generally require sign off by the Head of Internal Audit 
together with either the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer. During 
quarter four, the following grant certifications were signed off in this way: 

 Highways Incentive Funding 2019/20. 

Internal Audit performed various independent checks to ensure that grant 
certifications could be signed off and no issues arose from this work.

Substantial None

Children’s Services 
- Schools

1 Primary School This comprised a review of the school’s exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of school’s implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Little Heaton C of E Primary

The high priority recommendation focused on the fact that the school had 
set a deficit budget and therefore needed to direct significant focus 
towards controlling costs, evaluating any spending decisions and taking 
prompt action where any future deficits may be anticipated. School 
management appeared to be responding positively to the challenges being 
faced.

A number of other issues were raised during the course of the audit and 
have already been addressed due to the prompt action taken by school 
management. 
 

Adequate H – 1,
L – 2 

P
age 20



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 5 JUNE 2019

Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Cyber Security A Neighbourhoods 11 31/03/2018 11/01/2019 10 1

The  remaining action will 
be implemented when the 
new disaster recovery and 
backup solution is in place 

in autumn 2019

CHEST Procurement Portal A Resources 10 30/06/2018 25/03/2019 6 4 Remaining actions due to 
be complete by 30/06/19

Statutory Compliance In 
Property A Economy 9 31/03/2019    Follow up currently in 

progress

Connected Council 
Programme A Neighbourhoods 5 31/03/2019    Follow up currently in 

progress

Commercial Investment 
Fund A Economy 7 31/03/2019 29/04/19  3  4

Follow up of remaining 
actions currently in 

progress

Highways Winter Service S Neighbourhoods 11 31/05/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

Review of Compliance with 
Contract Procedure Rules A Resources 3 31/05/2019    To be followed up in 

2019/20

Contracts Register A Resources 8 30/06/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

Provider Portal Payments A Adult Care 6 30/06/2019    
To be followed up in 

2019/20

Pupil Premium Plus A Childrens 3 30/09/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

P
age 21



Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Pen Pictures A Adult Care 6 30/09/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

ContrOCC A Adult 2 30/11/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

P
age 22



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 17th June 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of Internal Audit during 2018/19 and presents the 
Head of Internal Audit’s opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s overall control 
environment, governance and risk management for 2018/19.

Of the 96% of the planned audit work that was completed during 2018/19, audit 
assurance opinions issued on the adequacy of the internal controls were recorded as 
‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ in 99% of cases. One audit was awarded a ‘limited’ 
assurance opinion but this was not considered to be significant in the wider context of 
the overall system of internal control and did not relate to the programme of material 
system audit reviews. 

On this basis the Head of Internal Audit concluded that the Council’s overall control 
framework remains adequate and generally being complied with.

Recommendation

2. To note the findings, conclusions and the overall opinion expressed by the Head of 
Internal Audit.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The findings and overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit form a key element of 
the assurance provided to Members to enable them to approve the Annual 
Governance Statement and the Annual Statement of Accounts.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

The role and scope of Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function discharges the statutory responsibilities delegated to the Chief Finance 
Officer  through Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2015 to undertake an effective internal audit of the Authority’s accounting 
records and of its system of internal control. The overall aims of Internal Audit are to provide an 
independent and objective opinion to management on the effectiveness of the Council’s overall 
control environment, governance and risk management by:

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 reviewing the adequacy of and identifying improvements in the Council’s systems;
 adding value by identifying improvements in the use of resources;
 helping embed a culture of appropriate risk management; and
 supporting corporate aims and objectives. 

4.2 The risk based approach by Internal Audit is now well developed, taking account of the wider 
business risk, performance management and developments in risk management and corporate 
governance. Rochdale Council’s Internal Audit function works in accordance with and conforms to 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2016 (PSIAS).

Review of work carried out in 2018/19

4.3 Internal Audit prepares an Annual Audit Plan of work to be carried out. This is based on the 
outcomes of extensive consultation, the Internal Audit Strategic Plan which details all potential 
areas at a corporate level and across all service areas within RBC and all related risk registers. 
The draft plan is discussed with Directors and their Service Management Teams (SMT). It is 
agreed by the Chief Finance Officer and approved by the Audit and Governance Committee.

4.4 The key components of the actual audit work undertaken in 2018/19 compared to the original 
audit plan and the actual audit work undertaken in 2017/18 are summarised below.

Type of Audit Work undertaken Actual
2017/18

Plan 
2018/19

Actual
2018/19

Days % Days % Days %
Governance and Strategic  

Framework
174 14 150 11 139 10

Material Systems 157 13 114 9 144 11
Major Contracts, Partnerships and    

Procurement 129 10 126 9 140 10
Information Governance and 

Computer Audit 99 8 72 5 87 6
Schools 115 9 127 9 120 9
Other Systems 318 26 515 37 500 36
Audit Planning and Consultation 19 2 16 1 18 1
External Organisations Work 21 2 20 1 36 3
Unplanned Work 
 - Fraud & Irregularity 119 10 120 9 47 3
 - Non – Fraud 78 6 120 9 154 11

TOTAL 1,229 100 1380 100 1385 100

4.5 In order to respond to changes within Services, a number of adjustments were made to the audit 
plan during the year at the request of and in consultation with Services and members of the Audit 
and Governance Committee. In this regard certain audits were deferred until 2019/20 in order to 
accommodate other audits focusing on emerging risks which assumed greater priority in terms of 
providing assurance on the overall control environment. In other areas, audits were deferred due 
to the fact that planned developments within Services had not yet taken place. The flexibility built 
into the audit planning process reflects the need to respond to the changing structures and risks 
inherent in a period of ongoing change for the Council. No audits that were deferred had any 
significant impact on providing this assurance. A summary of the outcomes of all audits included 
within the agreed Audit Plan is included within Appendix 1.

Page 24



4.6 The key points to note when comparing actual days to plan in 2018/19 and actual days in 2017/18 
are:
 
 The amount of time spent on areas relating to governance and the strategic framework 

continued to represent a core part of Internal Audit activity, reflecting the fact that more focus 
is directed towards high risk areas which have an impact right across the Authority; 

 The focus on unplanned time in 2018/19 was directed towards requests for assurance from 
management with less time being absorbed on fraud related issues; 

 The amount of time spent reviewing material systems continues to reflect the significant focus 
now being directed towards more in depth audits of the key financial systems, with scope and 
coverage varying on a cyclical basis depending upon the issues found during the course of 
each year;  

 The significant amount of time spent on major projects and procurement reflects the increased 
risks associated with this area in the current challenging economic climate and the period of 
significant change. Particular focus continues to be directed towards commissioning 
arrangements as new business models emerge within the integration of health and social care 
services, and also towards compliance with contract procedure rules and other associated 
regulations; 

 Time spent on computer audit areas was directed towards ensuring compliance with the 
Public Services Network, which is crucial to ongoing connectivity with key government 
systems, and seeking audit assurance on ICT system developments which support 
transformational change within Services, as well as areas such as information governance, 
ICT resilience and policy compliance;  

 Additional time was spent on external organisations work as Internal Audit was able to 
generate some additional external income through work undertaken for various schools; and

 The time spent on school audits remains at a relatively high level in order to provide senior 
management with ongoing assurance on the controls in place across this sector, which has 
responsibility for significant amounts of funding.

Summary overview of audit coverage in 2018/19

4.7 The diagram below illustrates the audit coverage within each Service during 2018/19.  Details of 
final reports issued have been reported on a quarterly basis during the year to the Audit and 
Governance Committee as part of the governance framework.  

Page 25



0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

St
ra

te
gi

c
Fr

am
ew

or
k

In
te

gr
at

ed
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

Ca
re

 C
om

m
iss

io
ni

ng

Ad
ul

t C
ar

e

Ch
ild

re
n'

s -
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e

Ch
ild

re
n'

s -
 E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs

Ec
on

om
y

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

W
el

lb
ei

ng

Re
so

ur
ce

s

Ex
te

rn
al

 In
co

m
e

Days

Actual Audit Coverage by Service

Unplanned

Planned

Audit opinions in audit reports

4.8 In each Internal Audit report, Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance opinion on how 
effectively risks are being managed in the area under review. These opinions are as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited A number of key risks are not managed effectively. The control systems in 
operation are in need of significant improvement.

Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. However, opportunities 
exist to improve the management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks effectively.

Page 26



4.9 Set out in the table below is a summary of Audit Opinions issued in relation to reviews within 
Services during the year 2018/19.

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

Ad
eq

ua
te

Li
m

ite
d

To
ta

l (
20

18
/1

9)

To
ta

l (
20

17
/1

8)

Integrated Care and Commissioning 2 2 0

Adult Care 1 5 6 3

Children’s Services – Social Care 2 2 2

Children’s Services – Early Help 8 7 1 16 18

Economy 1 2 3 4

Neighbourhoods 9 6 15 16

Public Health and Wellbeing 2 1 3 3

Resources 9 6 15 12

Total (2018/19) 34 27 1 62 58

Total (2017/18) 33 24 1 58

The figures in the table above do not represent the full value of work undertaken within the 
Authority’s Services. Unplanned work (including fraud and irregularity) and advice and 
support do not generally result in an audit opinion and are not therefore represented in the 
above figures.  

The use of formal audit opinions on internal controls in audit reports continues to be well 
received by Services and Members as a concise way of summarising the audit outcome. 
Overall, 55% of the assurance opinions issued were “Substantial” (57% in 2017/18) and 
44% were “Adequate” (41% in 2017/18). 

A summary of the issues and actions arising from audits receiving a “Limited” assurance 
audit opinion is included in section 4.12 to 4.14 below. All such reports have been 
discussed with members of the Audit and Governance Committee during the course of the 
year and any subsequent follow up work on audit reports is also reflected in the summary of 
follow up audits included within each quarterly Internal Audit report.

Page 27



Internal Audit staffing

4.10 The structure of the Internal Audit team throughout 2018/19 was as set out below:

Head of Internal Audit 

Audit Manager Audit Manager

Auditor
(Term time 

only)

Senior 
Auditor

Senior 
Auditor 

Auditor

4.11 During 2018/19 the Head of Internal Audit also had responsibility for Risk Management and 
Counter Fraud with the Risk Manager and Counter Fraud Team Leader reporting directly to the 
Head of Internal Audit. Furthermore, with effect from June 2017, the Insurance function also 
reported directly into the Risk Manager and therefore comes within the overall responsibility of the 
Head of Internal Audit. As set out within the Internal Audit Charter, any internal audit conducted in 
these areas with a view to providing assurance will be led by an Audit Manager reporting directly 
into the Chief Finance Officer in order to maintain the independence of views expressed by 
Internal Audit. The possibility of such audits being covered by external peer reviews from within 
the North West Chief Audit Executive Group is also being explored as a further option.

Audit reviews with a limited assurance audit opinion

4.12 Any reports which include significant issues or control weaknesses during the course of the year 
are brought to the attention of members of the Audit and Governance Committee for discussion. 
This will ensure that appropriate actions are taken to resolve these issues in a timely manner. 
Only one audit report with a limited assurance opinion was issued during 2018/19. Internal Audit 
has also completed follow up audits to confirm the implementation of actions arising from 
significant weaknesses highlighted in previous periods. The key issues arising which have been 
taken account of in terms of deriving an overall opinion on the effectiveness of the control 
environment are set out below.

4.13 Primary School
  (Assistant Director – Early Help and Schools)

In November 2018 an audit was undertaken on a primary school which highlighted weaknesses in 
fundamental internal controls and a limited assurance opinion was given. A substantial number of 
recommendations were made, including 2 of high priority and 11 of medium priority, to address 
improvements that needed to be made to the system of internal control to ensure it aligns with 
best practice.

Page 28



A subsequent follow up has confirmed that the agreed recommendations have now been 
implemented and the overall control environment has now improved significantly and is now 
assessed to be effective.

4.14 IT Disaster Recovery Follow Up
  (Director – Neighbourhoods)

In Q4 2017/18 Internal Audit evaluated the IT disaster recovery (ITDR) arrangements in place and 
the extent to which they have been tested. Whilst the audit confirmed that some areas of good 
practice do exist, it also identified areas where significant improvements need to be made if the 
Council’s ITDR arrangements are to be considered efficient, effective and fit for purpose. As a 
consequence we could only provide limited assurance that key risks were being managed 
effectively. Whilst some of the basic infrastructure was in place to facilitate effective control, we 
identified some high and medium priority issues in fundamental areas which contribute to this 
opinion and an action plan was agreed with management to address these issues. 

A subsequent follow up audit in Q4 2018/19, which was presented to Audit and Governance 
Committee on 8 April 2019, confirmed that significant progress is being made towards developing 
the ITDR arrangements, primarily focused on the proposed implementation of cloud based IT 
facilities which will lead to significant improvements in IT recovery times in the event of a major 
incident occurring. As a consequence the audit opinion has now been revised to providing 
“adequate” assurance that key risks are being managed effectively. Internal Audit will continue to 
monitor developments and actions in this area and will report back to Members to provide a 
further update when considered appropriate.

Unplanned work

4.15 Unplanned work includes investigations into suspected and actual irregularities, special 
assignments, audits not included within the agreed Audit Plan, and general advice and support. 
Unplanned work accounted for 15% (2017/18 - 16%) of all productive time with suspected fraud 
and irregularity investigations comprising approximately 23% (2017/18 - 60%) of this. A summary 
of the significant unplanned work completed (i.e. resulted in a report to management and where 
any related disciplinary or Police related issues have been formally concluded) during 2018/19 is 
set out in the following paragraphs.

Significant unplanned work (suspected fraud and irregularity)

4.16 In addition to issues previously reported by Internal Audit to the Audit and Governance 
Committee during the year, it is also noted that a number of preliminary investigations were 
undertaken during the year as a result of allegations made either by individuals or on an 
anonymous basis in conjunction with the Whistleblowing Policy. These investigations resulted in a 
variety of outcomes including:

 No evidence could be found to support the allegations and, where the allegations were 
made by a known individual, direct communication was made with that individual; and

 No evidence to support the allegations but enhancements to existing processes and 
controls were made to mitigate certain areas of risk in the future as identified during the 
investigation.

Page 29



Significant unplanned work (non-fraud)

4.17 Other significant audit work not included in the original Audit Plan included the following reviews:

Audit Service Reported to A&G 
Committee

Procurement Issues Neighbourhoods 17 December 2018

Organisations Funded By Public Money Economy 17 December 2018

Coroners Service Neighbourhoods 17 December 2018

Public Health Scheme Of Delegation Public Health 17 December 2018

Property Development Economy 8 April 2019

Organisations Funded By Public Money Economy 8 April 2019

Recharge Processes for a Nursery Neighbourhoods 17 June 2019

Governance and risk management

4.18 Governance

Internal Audit assurance has been provided in various areas of governance throughout 2018/19 
including the following:
 Independent evaluation of the Annual Governance Statement to ensure it aligns with Internal 

Audit’s view on the control environment and the management of risks across the Authority;
 Evaluation of responses from the annual Directors Governance Assurance Statement;
 Membership and input to the Governance Board which provides an overall co-ordinating role to 

ensure issues and developments associated with governance are progressed and challenged 
in a timely manner, including the monitoring of actions set out with the Annual Governance 
Statement 2017/18;

 Full review of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy to ensure it remains up to date and in line 
with relevant guidance and legislation; and

 Annual audit assurance provided to confirm compliance with the data protection legislation and 
guidance, together with the requirements of the Public Services Network.

4.19 Risk management

Internal Audit has continued to provide direct input into the development of the Council’s risk 
management processes and arrangements which have included the following:
 Liaison with the Wider Leadership Team to refresh the Corporate Risk Register to ensure it 

remains up to date and aligned with the current structure and objectives of the Council, and 
continues to be reviewed and challenged on an ongoing basis; 

 Ongoing development of risk reporting protocols to ensure relevant information is fed into the 
quarterly Leadership Dashboard;

 Ongoing liaison between the Head of Internal Audit and the Risk Manager to ensure that any 
key areas of risk emerging from Internal Audit work are communicated and considered for 
inclusion within relevant risk registers and any emerging Service based risks are considered 
as part of audit planning processes; 

 Ensuring Service risk registers continue to be challenged, reviewed and updated on an 
ongoing basis with appropriate support from Risk Management Groups and a network of Risk 
Champions covering all key Service areas;

Page 30



 The ongoing development of a joint Risk Management policy for the Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group and the Council, including the agreement of a 
common risk scoring matrix and the intention of establishing a common risk strategy which 
should be in place during 2019/20; and

 The development and implementation of a new risk management system, as part of the new 
performance manager system, which is due to be implemented during 2019.

Processes supporting governance and risk management are continuing to develop as Council 
Services and structures evolve. Internal Audit will continue to liaise closely with management both 
to support and critically appraise these processes on an ongoing basis.

4.20

Contract audit, procurement and commissioning

The role of contract audit continues to develop as local authorities change methods of service 
delivery. In this regard, key audit activity completed in 2018/19 included: 
 Reviewing procurement processes and controls to evaluate the extent of compliance with 

relevant rules, regulations and best practice, including compliance with Contract Procedure 
Rules and the financial appraisal of tenderers; 

 An evaluation of STAR Quality Management Systems;
 A review of the completeness, accuracy and effective use of the Contracts Register;
 Compliance reviews relating to various Service based contractual arrangements;
 Monitoring the development of integrated commissioning arrangements as part of the 

integration of health and social care services;
 A review of the contract management processes associated with sexual health services; 
 An evaluation of the commissioning of services for service users within Adult Care; and
 Providing assurance regarding the governance over and management of the Council’s 

Highways Contract.

4.21 Various audits were completed to meet the terms of certain external grant funding contracts and 
therefore provide assurance that expenditure was in line with the terms of the grant funding 
arrangements. These included:
 Annual Certification of Assessed and Supported in Year in Employment (AYSE) Programme 

Expenditure for 2017/18; 
 Parking Charge Notice certification;
 Disabled Facilities Capital Grant determination 2017/18;
 Local Growth Fund Determination 2017/18;
 Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Pothole Action Fund) Specific Grant Determination 

2017/18; 
 Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Pothole Action Fund) Specific Grant Determination 

2017/18 (Additional Funding); 
 Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Flood Resilience Fund) Specific Grant Determination 

2017/18; 
 Highways Incentive Funding 2019/20; and
 Cycle City Ambition Grant Certification 2017/18.

Counter fraud

4.22 During the year Internal Audit has continued to develop and support a fraud awareness 
programme as part of an ongoing commitment to promote a more pro-active and cohesive 
approach to the prevention and detection of fraud across the Authority. More detail is included 
within the Internal Audit Annual Fraud Report 2018/19 presented to the Audit and Governance 
Committee on 17 June 2019. However specific areas covered in 2018/19 include:
 Ongoing review and update of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy (AFACP) in general terms 

to ensure it remains relevant in the context of changes in legislation and changes within the 

Page 31



Authority;
 Further update and promotion of the Whistleblowing Policy which forms part of the AFACP;
 Co-ordination of the National Fraud Initiative to ensure that all relevant stages were completed 

within deadlines by 31 March 2019;
 Co-ordination of a response to the Fighting Fraud Locally Checklist, to measure the Council’s 

culture and adherence to best practice, which was presented to the Audit and Governance 
Committee on 17 June 2019;

 Co-ordination of a response to the 2018/19 CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker survey; 
 Liaison with Finance Service to develop areas of work using specialised software (AP 

Forensics) to minimise the risk of fraud within the creditor payment area; and
 Maintaining the close links established with the Counter Fraud Team to ensure a co-ordinated 

approach to fraud is adopted.

4.23 Counter fraud work covers many areas including culture, deterrence, prevention, detection, 
investigation, sanction and redress. Working on the premise that “prevention is better than cure”, 
Internal Audit adopt the approach that it is important to be as proactive as possible in terms of 
attempting to stop fraud before it occurs or to detect fraud as soon as possible. Being proactive 
and minimising fraud will assist in more optimal use of available resources either through 
reducing financial losses or more effective use of time. This approach is enhanced further now 
that the Counter Fraud Team reports directly into the Head of Internal Audit.

4.24 CIPFA issued some best practice guidance on anti-fraud measures entitled Managing the Risk of 
Fraud, known as the Red Book. Within criteria 4.20 of the Red Book, a challenge is made as to 
whether proactive exercises are undertaken in key areas of fraud risk or known systems 
weaknesses. Within the response of RBC to the Red Book which was previously presented to the 
Audit Committee, RBC confirmed compliance to this criteria in the following ways:
 Known system weaknesses are reviewed depending on the view of the associated risk and 

materiality; this is factored into the Internal Audit planning process;
 Other proactive work includes an external company being employed to identify potential 

duplicate payments;
 Use of IT data interrogation software by Internal Audit to assist in proactively identifying 

workplace fraud;
 The Counter Fraud Team engage in various proactive anti-fraud exercises; and
 RBC actively participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), now managed and co-ordinated 

by Internal Audit, with appropriate follow up procedures in place.

Page 32



4.25

Audit performance indicators

The following targets were set as part of the continuous improvement process. The table below 
compares actuals for 2018/19 against the targets for 2018/19 and the actuals for 2017/18.

Performance Indicator 2017/18 2018/19
Actual Target Actual

Improved? Target 
achieved?

Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day (£) 240 260 250 NO YES

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor 195 190 194 NO YES

3. Percentage of audit plan completed 96 96 96 YES YES

4. Percentage of draft audit reports 
issued within 14 days of completion of 
the audit

100 98 100 YES YES

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100 98 100 YES YES

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks 
in the top two categories (i.e. very good 
& good)

100 98 100 YES YES

4.26 All performance indicators either achieved or were ahead of target for the year.

4.27 In spite of increases in salary related costs which increased overall cost per day, the overall cost 
per audit day came in ahead of target due largely to increased productivity within the team, with 
an ongoing commitment to reduce administrative time. This in turn led to chargeable days coming 
in ahead of target, whilst being slightly down on last year largely due to the timing of annual leave 
and bank holidays.  In all areas, audit management and staff are mindful of methods to maintain 
and, where necessary, improve upon performance on an ongoing basis.

Client surveys

4.28 Client survey questionnaires are issued at the conclusion of each audit as part of Internal Audit’s 
quality control procedures. An analysis of returns showed that overall 100% of the marks were in 
the good or very good category compared to 100% in 2017/18. This high level reflects the 
continuing efforts made by Internal Audit to consult with client managers on audit coverage, to 
feedback findings during the audit and to seek to continually add value and improve the quality 
and presentation of audit reports.  

Liaison with external audit

4.29 The arrangements between external audit (Mazars) and Internal Audit are supported by regular 
communication to ensure proper co-ordination and liaison in respect of audit activities. Periodic 
meetings are held between Internal Audit and Mazars to review progress in areas covered by the 
respective audit plans and to exchange information on any key local issues with audit 
implications.  This helps to mitigate the risk of any duplication in work and ensures more effective 
assurance is provided to those charged with responsibility for governance. In overall terms, the 
relationship between Internal Audit and external audit is established and works very well.

Page 33



Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)

4.30 There is a specific requirement to confirm the conformance of Internal Audit to these standards to 
the Audit and Governance Committee, and also to report any such non-conformance to the Audit 
and Governance Committee. Furthermore, where such non-conformance impacts on the overall 
scope or operation of the internal audit activity, this should be disclosed within the Annual 
Governance Statement.

4.31 The PSIAS require an external assessment to be carried out at least every five years by a 
qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. In order to 
fulfil this, a Peer Review process has been established by the North West Chief Audit Executive 
Group. A Peer Review of RBC Internal Audit was concluded on 4 December 2017 confirming that 
RBC Internal Audit conforms to the PSIAS.

4.32 As a result of the internal Quality Assurance Improvement Programme, which forms a key part of 
the PSIAS, some ongoing actions have been identified to:

 Continue to review and challenge the QAIP in the light of experience and best practice 
identified through liaison with other Internal Audit teams in the North West; and

  Continue to identify training opportunities which align specifically with new and emerging 
challenges posed by changes within Council services and new ways of working, and which 
also support development needs of individual Internal Audit staff.

Other external and internal sources of assurance

4.33 Aside from the assurances provided by both Internal Audit and external audit over the adequacy 
of the controls in place to manage key risks, there are numerous internal mechanisms through 
which management are able to provide their own assurances that the risks that they have 
ownership of are being managed effectively. In addition there are also assurances provided by 
various external bodies which are independent of the organisation. In order to recognise the 
contribution that these other sources of assurance have on the overall opinion of the control 
environment, Internal Audit has produced an Assurance Map (attached as Appendix 2) using the 
“three lines of defence model” as a basis for evaluating assurances over the management of the 
risks set out within the Corporate Risk Register. This model represents the three main levels of 
control/ assurance that should exist in any organisation such as Rochdale Council, namely:

 First line -  the risk and control environment that management has established to control 
day-to-day activities;

 Second line – oversight functions that co-ordinate, facilitate and provide assurance over 
the risk and control environment, including policies, procedures and guidance; and 

 Third line – assurance provided by bodies who are independent of the front line Services 
and operations, both internally (Internal Audit) and externally (such as Ofsted, CQC etc). 
Such assurances are generally derived from and documented in reports. Internal Audit 
continues to liaise with senior management in each Directorate to obtain copies of 
relevant reports and external assurance work programmes to confirm that no issues arise 
which may influence or compromise the annual opinion of the Head of Internal Audit. As a 
consequence, reliance has been placed on these various external assurances in forming 
the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion.

4.34 As this Map is designed to be a colour coded representation of the quality/ level of assurance 
derived from the various controls against each risk, a rating of red, amber or green has been 
applied by senior management based upon the guidance set out on the Map.

4.35 To complement the above, an Assurance Framework document (attached as Appendix 3) has 
been developed to show in more pictorial form how the core areas which contribute to overall 
assurance link through to the work of the Governance Board and ultimately the production and 
approval of the Annual Governance Statement.

Page 34



Internal Audit Opinion Statement 2018/19

4.36 The Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 has been completed in accordance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. This Audit Plan comprised a range of assignments including reviews of 
all material financial systems, as part of our managed audit arrangements with external audit, and 
a range of risk and compliance based audits to provide assurance on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control.

4.37 The planned audit coverage for the year was based on an assessment of risks. Planned work has 
also been supplemented by ad hoc reviews in respect of suspected irregularities and other work 
commissioned by officers and Members of the Council, together with assurances derived from 
work conducted by independent review bodies and internal assurance mechanisms. Given the 
ongoing significant changes and risks being experienced by the Council throughout 2018/19, the 
Head of Internal Audit has continuously reviewed the risks associated with the Council’s 
operations and has allocated the necessary resources, via the Audit Plan, to form an opinion on 
the Council’s governance arrangements. There have not been any limitations placed on the 
scope of Internal Audit work completed during the year.

4.38 Of the planned audit work completed during 2018/19, audit assurance opinions issued on the 
adequacy of the internal controls were recorded as 'adequate' or ‘substantial’ in 99% of cases 
(98% in 2017/18). One audit was awarded a ‘limited’ assurance opinion. The details of this audit 
work and any follow-up activity has been reported to Members in the Internal Audit quarterly 
reports. However, the ‘limited’ assurance opinion is not considered to be significant in the wider 
context of the overall system of internal control and did not relate to the programme of material 
system audit reviews.

4.39 Whilst no systems of control can provide absolute assurance and given the limitations of audit 
work carried out, on the basis of the work undertaken in 2018/19 covering financial and operating 
systems, risk management and governance, the Head of Internal Audit concluded that a 
reasonable level of assurance can be given that the Council's overall control framework remains 
adequate, and generally being complied with. Furthermore there are no issues identified from the 
Internal Audit work undertaken that are considered relevant in terms of the preparation of the 
AGS.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

The only implications on risk are those issues that have been highlighted by Internal 
Audit during the year. In this regard, these risks will be mitigated by completion of the 
actions agreed with management and summarised within the respective quarterly 
reports to this Committee.

6.

Consultation

7. No direct consultation has been undertaken. However the outcomes from and 
conclusions drawn by a number of external assurance providers have been taken 
account of within the overall opinion expressed by the Head of Internal Audit.

Page 35



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 36



Rochdale Borough Council Internal audit Plan 2018/19 - Summary of Outcomes                                                                                                             Appendix 1

Audit Brief Risk
Core/

Assurance Status Final date Assurance
(S/ A/ L) Notes

INTEGRATED HEALTH AND CARE COMMISSIONING

1 Governance Structures and Processes H Core 15/11/2018 S

2 Strategic Commissioning Function H Core Deferred
Deferred to 2019/20 due to long term absence of Sally

McIvor and plans to develop a joint audit approach
with the MIAA

3 Transformation Bid H Core 15/11/2018 S

ADULT CARE
4 Provider Portal Payments M Core 01/04/2019 A

5 Controcc M Core 21/03/2019 A

6 Commissioning of Services for Service Users (Pen Pictures) M Assurance 22/03/2019 A

7 Sensory Team (Visual/ Hearing Impairment) M Assurance 21/02/2019 A

8 Residential Care Payments M Core Deferred Deferred to 2019/20 due to introduction of change of
policy towards year end.

9 Governance and Statutory Oversight of Director of Adult
Services (DAS) Functions H Core Deferred Deferred to 2019/20 due to change in responsibilities

for the DAS

10 Data Integrity H Assurance A

11 Care Purchased by Integrated Discharge Teams (IDTs) M Assurance 31/10/2018 N/A
Confirmed that practice was not in line with

expectation and no external commissioning was
undertaken.

12 Safeguarding (Adults) H Assurance In progress - to be completed in Q1 2019/20

B/F Quality Assurance M Assurance 11/07/2018 A

ADD Disabled Facilities Grant 2017-18 L Core 28/06/2018 S

CHILDREN'S SERVICES - CHILDREN’S SOCIAL CARE

13 Special Guardianship Orders and Adoption Allowances M Assurance N/A
Confirmed adoption allowances no longer material in

value so audit deleted. SGOs will be covered in
2019/20 Audit Plan.

14 Commissioning of external placements H Core Deferred Agreed with management to defer to Q1 2019/20

15 Youth Offending Service M Assurance In progress - to be completed in Q1 2019/20

B/F Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children M Assurance 22/11/2018 S

B/F Recruitment and retention of foster carers H Assurance S

CHILDREN’S SERVICES - EARLY HELP, PREVENTION AND
PARTNERSHIPS

16 Family Services Model M Assurance External
evaluation

Audit deleted due to external evaluation commissioned
by management in Q4 2018/19

17 Troubled Families M Assurance 21/09/2018 S

18 Pupil Premiums Plus M Assurance 11/01/2019 A

19 Funding for SEN children M Assurance N/A Best practice checklist establihsed to share with all
schools

20 Rochdale Additional Needs Service L Assurance A

21
Primary schools (11) S - 4

L Assurance 11 A - 6
L - 1

22 Special schools (2) L Assurance 2 S

23 Secondary schools (1) L Assurance 23/07/2018 S

24 Nursery schools (1) L Assurance 14/12/2018 S

25 General advice and liaison with Schools Service L Assurance N/A Provision of advice and support

PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING

26 Link4Life Client Management M Core Deferred Deferred to 2019/20 due to a delay in the development
of the new contract

27 Trading Standards M Assurance 10/09/2018 A

B/F Sexual health contract management M Assurance 25/03/2019 S

ADD Scheme of Delegation M Assurance 15/08/2018 S
NEIGHBOURHOODS

28 Highways Contract Management M Assurance 27/09/2018 S

P
age 37



29 Devolution of Street Services to Townships M Assurance N/A Agreed with management to delete audit as planned
developments have not yet been implemented.

30 Section 106 Funding M Assurance 17/10/2018 A

31 Enforcement (Environmental Action Unit) L Assurance Deferred Deferred to 2019/20 pending implementation of the
new Public Space Protection Order.

32 Greater Manchester Road Activities Permit Scheme (GMRAPS) M Assurance/
Compliance 12/10/2018 A

33 Green Lane Stores M Assurance 07/12/2018 A

34 Integrated Place Team M Assurance 06/11/2018 S

35 Advertising Costs L Assurance 10/07/2018 S

36
Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Integrated Transport
and Highway Maintenance) Specific Grant Determination
2017/18

L Core N/A Certification not required in 2018/19

37 Highways Incentive Funding 2019/20 L Core 24/01/2019 S

38 Local Growth Fund Determination (2016-17): 31/2777 L Core 16/07/2018 S

39 Cycle City Ambition Grant Determination 31/2796 L Core 24/09/2018 S

ADD Devolved Transport Funding certification (Pothole Action fund
2017-18) L Core 24/09/2018 S

ADD

Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Pothole Action Fund)
2017-18 - Additional Funding
Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Flood Resilience Fund)
2017-18

L Core 22/03/2019 S

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY

40 Public Services Network H Core 09/11/2018 S

41 Connected Council Programme M Assurance 19/06/2018 A

42 ICT Strategy M Assurance Deferred New ICT Strategy to be completed in 2019 so audit
deferred to 2019/20

43 Information Governance/ GDPR H Core A

44 GDPR Compliance in Schools H Core 26/04/2019 A

ECONOMY

45 Town Centre Programme Management Board M Assurance A

46 Flood Protection/ Management M Assurance 03/10/2018 S

B/F Asset Management - Statutory Compliance M Assurance 18/05/2018 A

B/F Commercial Investment Fund H Assurance 14/08/2018 A

RESOURCES

47 Annual payroll returns and pension scheme certification M Core 15/08/2018 S

48 Universal Credit M Core 31/10/2018 S

49 Council tax billing M Core 10/01/2019 A

50 Business rates M Core 06/03/2019 S

51 Assessed and Supported Year in Employment Grant (Child
Care) L Core 29/05/2018 S

52 Procurement

52a Compliance with Contract Procedure Rules (Resources) Core 21/11/2018 A Completed by Stockport MBC IA

52b Procurement - Contracts Register (Resources) M Core 01/08/2018 A

52c STAR Quality Management System (Resources) M Core 12/06/2018 A Completed by Stockport MBC IA

52d CHEST Procurement Portal (follow up) M Core 28/06/2018 S

52e Financial Appraisal of Tenderers (follow up) M Core 26/02/2019 S Completed by Trafford MBC IA

53 Treasury management M Core 10/10/2018 S

54 Coordination and support for key policies N/A Assurance N/A Provision of advice and support

Audit Brief Risk
Core/

Assurance Status Final date Assurance
(S/ A/ L) Notes

P
age 38



55 Cash control L Core 02/07/2018 S

56 Operating expenditure/ Creditors M Core 21/02/2019 S

57 Payroll M Core 05/12/2018 A

B/F Payroll - IR35 Compliance M Core 13/07/2018 A

Audit Brief Risk
Core/

Assurance Status Final date Assurance
(S/ A/ L) Notes

P
age 39



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL - ASSURANCE MAP 1st line of defence 2nd line of defence 3rd line of defence
Appendix 2 Delivering the risk and control environment Other oversight and assurance functions Independent assurance/ advice

First line
(more knowledge, less independence)

Identifying risks and improvement actions; implementing
controls; reporting on progress; management assurance

Second line
(more objective, but not wholly independent)
Designing policies; setting direction, ensuring

compliance; assurance oversight

Third line
(objective and independent)

Independent challenge; audit; reporting on
assurance

Ref  Risk Risk Assessment Owner Service Based Management Controls Corporate and Management Oversight Independent and Objective
Inherent Residual

CRR0002
A catastrophic event and lack of organisational
resilience leads to inability to deliver our services,
to then support and protect the wider community
and to rebuild the infrastructure (Operational)

20 12 Mark
Widdup

Service level business continuity plans, refreshed
and checked for accuracy quarterly

Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed
and checked for accuracy annually

Independent assurance provided by Internal
Audit

Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner
Brothers site) for specific purposes

Periodic training and briefing to service
business continuity leads undertaken

Resilience self-assessment audit undertaken
annually by the Cabinet Office

Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver
and Forward Incident officers

Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry
run exercises

PSN  (Public Services Network)  Compliance and
PCI DSS (Payment Card Industry Data Security
Standards) Compliance annually

Resilience of ICT systems is periodically tested Emergency plan refreshed annually,
communicated and understood

Business Continuity plans are being reviewed
and challenged by Civil Contingencies Unit with
a view to running exercises with BC Champions

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports
all decision making

Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief
incidents and conduct exercises

CRR0008 Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to
the act or omission by Council employees
(Compliance/ Legal)

20 15 Gail
Hopper

Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and
embedded Local Safeguarding Children Board in place

which provides robust challenge
Independent Ofsted inspections   

Workforce Development Strategy - training and
support provided to staff

Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is
fully embedded

Regional Support and Challenge including Peer
Reviews

Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and
training on safe practice in schools Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched Internal Audit reviews of systems, processes

and controls
Effective management oversight and supervision of

staff
Ongoing and robust management of external/

commissioned service providers
Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports

all decision making
CRR0009 Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable

adult due to the act or omission by Council
employees (Compliance/ Legal)

20 15 Andrea
Fallon Effective management and supervision of staff    Adult Safeguarding Board in place which

provides robust challenge
Independent reviews by the Care Quality

Commission (CQC)

Robust contract management procedures Quality assurance process in place Regional support and peer challenge
Recruitment and retention plan for qualified social

workers
Adult Care Safeguarding Policy is communicated

and followed
Internal Audit reviews of systems, processes

and controls
Training strategy and development plans in place for

staff
Robust and regular safeguarding and case file

audits

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports
all decision making

Framework in place for the management and
oversight of professional social work practice

standards
Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with

CQC and other partners  

CRR0001 Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate
governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/
malpractice, poor decision making or judicial
review, causing serious service and financial
failure (Compliance/ Legal)

16 6 David
Wilcock

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports
all decision making

Code of Corporate Governance communicated,
understood and followed

Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit
and Governance Committee

Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and
being followed

Governance Board providing challenge to and co-
ordination of all governance issues

Independent assurance provided by Internal
Audit

Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood
and being followed

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy communicated,
understood and followed

Independent assurance provided by external
Audit

Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which
are clear, understood and followed

Performance Management arrangements which
promotes accountability and outcome

monitoring is embedded

Independent assurance provided by external
assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality Commission

etc.)

P
age 40



Information Governance Framework which
supports compliance with all data control

requirements is embedded

Independent assurance on information
governance and data protection from an

Information Commissioner's Office Consensual
Audit

Independent assurance from a Corporate Peer
Challenge

Independent assurance on Internal Audit from a
Peer Review every 5 years

First line
(more knowledge, less independence)

Identifying risks and improvement actions; implementing
controls; reporting on progress; management assurance

Second line
(more objective, but not wholly independent)
Designing policies; setting direction, ensuring

compliance; assurance oversight

Third line
(objective and independent)

Independent challenge; audit; reporting on
assurance

Ref  Risk Risk Assessment Owner Service Based Management Controls Corporate and Management Oversight Independent and Objective
Inherent Residual

P
age 41



CRR0003 Budget reductions required do not leave enough
budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve
balanced budget leading to a failure in legal duty
(Strategic)

16 9 Neil
Thornton

Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively
highlights financial challenges

Medium Term Financial Strategy updated every 6
months and approved by Cabinet and Council

Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet,
Overview and Scrutiny and Council on budget

position locally and nationally

Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered
to

Corporate Plan established which provides
strategic direction for services

s151 Officer Report presented to Council
annually prior to budget setting

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports
all decision making

Organisational Development Strategy in place
which aligns strategy, people and processes External audit financial resilience assessment

Corporate approach to addressing budget
challenges (offices and Members working

together)
CRR0004 Ineffective financial management and resilience

leads to the Council significantly overspending the
annual budget (Strategic)

16 6 Neil
Thornton

Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively
highlights financial challenges

Medium Term Financial Strategy updated every 6
months and approved by Cabinet and Council

Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet,
Overview and Scrutiny and Council on budget

position locally and nationally

Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered
to

Corporate Plan established which provides
strategic direction for services

s151 Officer Report presented to Council
annually prior to budget setting

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports
all decision making

Organisational Development Strategy in place
which aligns strategy, people and processes External audit financial resilience assessment

Corporate approach to addressing budget
challenges (offices and Members working

together)

Internal Audit reviews of systems, processes
and controls

CRR0007 Risk of a breakdown in community stability
(Operational) 16 12 Mark

Widdup

Extensive partnerships developed and maintained
enabling networking and intelligence sharing, e.g.

active citizens and multi-faith forums

Consequence Management Group established
and provides early intervention on community

tensions and develop cohesion and diversionary
activities

Police neighbourhood surveys reported to the
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership

(RSCP)

Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management
process in place

Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected
Members and Community Representatives

Hate crime reports to RSCP for schools and
communities

Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Joint working with Greater Manchester
authorities to monitor and mitigate risks

CRR0010 Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to
a lack of investment in the Borough and lower
levels of regeneration and prosperity (Operational)

16 9 John
Searle

Programme/ project management principles are
applied consistently

Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive
and regularly updated

Oversight and challenge of major projects and
decisions by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny

Committee

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports
all decision making

Asset Management Plan is established,
monitored and regularly updated

Independent assurance provided by Internal
Audit

Maximise opportunities for good news

Advice and assurance provided through both
Rochdale Development Agency and procured
independent specialist commercial and legal

advice
Early warning protocol agreed for identifying

potential bad news
CRR0005 Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and

safety systems leads to harm to an individual and
a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction
(Compliance/ Legal)

12 8 Neil
Thornton

Learning and development provided to whole
workforce, primarily through e-learning

Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear,
understood and being followed

Independent assurance provided by Internal
Audit

In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link
into the Central Health and Safety Committee

Comprehensive health and well-being policies in
place and adhered to

Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure
risk and issues highlighted and addressed

Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports
all decision making

Member training regularly updated, fully attended and
understood

CRR0006 Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester
priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational) 12 8 Steve

Rumbelow
Officer representation on working groups dealing
with CA/AGMA/Devolution issues as appropriate

Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT
(Meeting of GM Chief Executives)

Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on
Scrutiny Panel

First line
(more knowledge, less independence)

Identifying risks and improvement actions; implementing
controls; reporting on progress; management assurance

Second line
(more objective, but not wholly independent)
Designing policies; setting direction, ensuring

compliance; assurance oversight

Third line
(objective and independent)

Independent challenge; audit; reporting on
assurance

Ref  Risk Risk Assessment Owner Service Based Management Controls Corporate and Management Oversight Independent and Objective
Inherent Residual

P
age 42



Leader is a member of formally constituted GM
Combined Authority with other Council Leaders

and Mayor

Level of Assurance 1st and 2nd lines of defence
(process based assessment)

3rd line of defence
(results based assessment)

SUBSTANTIAL - Controls in place assessed as
adequate/ effective and in proportion to the risks

SUBSTANTIAL - Mainly positive results, many
strengths, minor recommendations for improvement

ADEQUATE - some areas of concern over the
adequacy/ effectiveness of the controls in proportion
to the risks

ADEQUATE - Mixed results, some areas of concern
and areas for improvement, some positive results
and some strengths

LIMITED - Significant concerns over the adequacy/
effectiveness of the controls in proportion to the risks

LIMITED - Overall negative results and areas of
concern, requiring action and improvement

Not applicable or not in place yet Not applicable or not in place yet

First line
(more knowledge, less independence)

Identifying risks and improvement actions; implementing
controls; reporting on progress; management assurance

Second line
(more objective, but not wholly independent)
Designing policies; setting direction, ensuring

compliance; assurance oversight

Third line
(objective and independent)

Independent challenge; audit; reporting on
assurance

Ref  Risk Risk Assessment Owner Service Based Management Controls Corporate and Management Oversight Independent and Objective
Inherent Residual

P
age 43



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL - OVERALL ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK 2019 Appendix 3

                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                             Review Function of                                                                                                                                             Governance  Board              

Performance 
Management
 Service Planning
 Performance 

Management 
Framework
 Performance 

Development Plans
 Performance reporting 

framework
 Scrutiny Committees 

and scrutiny reviews
 Organisational 

Development Strategy
 Project Management
 Workforce 

Development Strategy

Internal Audit

 Head of Internal 
Audit opinion 
expressed in annual 
report to Audit and 
Governance 
Committee.
 Operates in 

accordance with 
Public Sector 
Internal Audit 
Standards
 Risk-based audit 

plan approved by 
Audit and 
Governance 
Committee

External Audit and 
Inspection
 Annual Plan 
 Annual Audit Letter
 Audit Opinion
 Value for Money 

Opinion
 Grant certifications

Assurance by 
Managers
 Annual Director 

Assurance 
Statements
 Periodic reports
 Assurance cascaded 

through all employees
 Control and risk 

assessments
 Quality Assurance 

frameworks
 In-house Service 

reviews

Risk Management 
and Business 
Continuity Plans
 Risk Management 

Strategy, Framework 
and Policy
 Risk embedded in 

policies, plans and 
project management
 Effectiveness evaluated
 Approval and monitoring 

of Corporate and 
Service risk registers
 Risk monitoring reports
 Consider business 

continuity and insurance 
arrangements.

Other Sources of 
Assurance
 Fraud Reports and 

investigations
 Reports by 

inspectors
 Post implementation 

reviews
 Ombudsman reports
 Ofsted
 Care Quality 

Commission
 HM Customs
 Food Standards 

Agency
 Department of Health
 Peer reviews

Significant 
Partners/ 
Associated 
Bodies
 Client Monitoring 

role
 Performance 

management 
standards and 
monitoring
 Review of Council’s 

governance 
arrangements
 Internal and 

external audit 
reviews

Internal Control Framework
 Constitution and Standing Orders
 Code of Corporate Governance
 Statutory Officers
 Corporate Plan detailing high level objectives and priorities
 Service Planning Framework
 Information Governance Framework
 Data Quality Strategy
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Annual Budget and Budgetary Control
 Project Management
 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy (including Whistleblowing)
 Codes of Conduct (Members/Officers)

Review of draft AGS and 
supporting evidence by Governance 
Board and recommendation of 
approval to Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS) (Signed by Leader and Chief 
Executive) 
Published with the Statement of 
Accounts

Governance Board with responsibility 
for: reviewing controls; drafting AGS; 
evaluating assurances; and supporting 
evidence.
(Group includes Monitoring Officer, 
Head of Internal Audit, Head of 
Governance, Senior Information Risk 
Owner, Information Governance 
Manager and Risk Manager)

Directorate Plans
Policies and procedures; Performance Management; 
Risk Management Strategy

P
age 44



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 17th June 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Annual Fraud Report 2018/19

Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides a summary for those charged with responsibility for 
governance on the outcome of proactive and reactive anti-fraud and 
investigation work during 2018/19, with the main focus being work delivered 
by Internal Audit, which also includes the Council’s Counter Fraud Team. It 
also outlines some of the areas of emerging fraud risk and the Council’s 
strategic and operational arrangements for managing these risks.

1.2 The key issues arising and outcomes achieved during the year were:
a) 681 fraud referrals received by the Counter Fraud Team during 

2018/19;
b) £528,787 in financial benefits achieved through savings and increased 

income for the Council;
c) 82% of fraud referrals have resulted in positive outcomes i.e. any case 

with a positive result e.g. a successful prosecution or sanction, an 
overpayment, a bill or retrieving a blue badge being used fraudulently;

d) a former RBC employee was sentenced to 18 months imprisonment in 
February 2019 for a business rates fraud identified in 2016;

e) 1 formal caution administered;
f) 8 financial penalties administered amounting to £4,733;
g) 10 Administrative Penalties administered amounting to £13,720;  
h) good working relations with GMP and other partner organisations 

further embedded as part of ongoing work with the Partnership 
Enforcement Team, including direct involvement in several days of 
action;

i) key pieces of evidence and official statements provided to GMP as part 
of reactive fraud cases where criminal prosecutions were instigated;

j) 4 whistleblowing referrals logged and dealt with; 
k) provision of positive assurance to management on systems of control 

that were subject to proactive anti-fraud work e.g. payroll and creditor 
payments; and

l) positive assurance that the key requirements of the national Fighting 
Fraud Locally initiative are being complied with by the Council.

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



Recommendation
2. Report for information.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Like any organisation of significant size and complexity, Rochdale Borough 
Council (the Council) is inherently vulnerable to risks of fraud and corruption. 
In response to these risks the Council has a range of mitigating controls that 
are used to both prevent and detect fraud and other similar malpractice that 
may exist within the Council. This report is therefore to inform the Audit and 
Governance Committee of the various actions and measures that have been 
taken during 2018/19 to mitigate the risks of fraud.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The Council needs to ensure that public money is safeguarded and not lost 
due to fraud.  At a time when local government finances continue to be 
severely cut back, it is important that resources are directed to those who 
genuinely need it.  Money lost to fraud is money that could be used instead to 
meet the important needs of genuine people and organisations in our 
Borough.

4.2 Apart from the need to ensure public money is protected, there are also a 
number of issues and safeguards which have been put in place to direct the 
anti-fraud work, with some of the more prominent of these now being 
considered below.

4.3 Anti-Fraud Report - "Protecting the English Public Purse" (PEPP)

The European Institute for Combatting Corruption and Fraud (TEICCAF) 
publish this report, which sets out a view of the fraud landscape, what the key 
risks and emerging risks are, along with a checklist of recommendations that 
organisations can use to self-assess against.  

Internal Audit co-ordinates the completion of self-assessment checklists such 
as this in co-operation with Services, and facilitates the implementation of any 
relevant actions the assessment identifies as good practice.  Emerging risks 
highlighted in the report are considered for inclusion within the Annual Internal 
Audit Plan.

The most recent version of the PEPP contains a self-assessment checklist 
which contains 11 recommendations, for which processes are in place either 
exactly as described in the report or via compensating arrangements that 
achieve the same or similar outcomes. 

4.4 Annual Fraud and Corruption Survey
At the time of writing this report the annual CIPFA Fraud and Corruption 
Tracker survey had not yet been initiated by the organising body.  As such, 
information in this regard will be reported to Committee in due course. 
Responses to the last Survey were co-ordinated and submitted by Internal 

Page 46



Audit in May 2018. 

The outcomes from this survey continue to inform future guidance and best 
practice in relation to fraud identification, prevention and detection. 

4.5 CIPFA Managing the Risk of Fraud 

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud is one of a 
number of useful publications that describe what action is needed for an 
organisation to be effective in countering fraud and corruption. The five key 
principles of this particular Code are to:

 Acknowledge the responsibility of the governing body for countering 
fraud and corruption;

 Identify the fraud and corruption risks;
 Develop an appropriate counter fraud and corruption strategy;
 Provide resources to implement the strategy; and
 Take action in response to fraud and corruption.

Internal Audit has taken the lead role in understanding and using this good 
practice in a practical way here at the Council by having completed the self-
assessment checklists provided, and ensuring that the principles within it are 
used as a benchmark for good practice in relation to any counter fraud 
initiatives.

4.6 Fighting Fraud Locally

Fighting Fraud Locally (FFL) is a publication that was first published in April 
2012 as part of a wider national collaboration on counter fraud.  The latest FFL 
now covers the 3 year period 2016-19 and  continues to provide a wealth of 
good practice, by which the Council’s approach to counter fraud initiatives 
going forward continues to be influenced.

Please see Appendix 1 for a completed self-assessment checklist which 
shows the position at the Council against a list of good practice from the FFL.

4.7 In the current economic climate there is a perceived increased risk of fraud 
due to a reduction in resources. This certainly remains true in local 
government, where budgetary pressures, large spending cuts and difficult 
decisions over priorities may well weaken controls and increase the likelihood 
of fraud.

4.8 To safeguard public money and ensure that funds are used for their intended 
purpose, the Council has a zero tolerance approach to fraud, supported by a 
strong policy statement and commitment to tackling fraud and corruption. This 
is backed up by various policies, procedures and codes linked to the Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Policy. This helps to ensure that staff, the public and 
various stakeholders can have confidence that the affairs of the Council are 
conducted in accordance with the highest standards of probity and 
accountability and that Members and officers demonstrate the highest 
standards of honesty and integrity.

Page 47



Structure and Roles

4.9 Working in conjunction with the Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer and 
other officers throughout the Council as appropriate, Internal Audit plays a part 
in ensuring that the Council has appropriate arrangements to deter, detect and 
investigate fraud. This role includes the following: 

4.10 a) Driving the continual development of a framework of anti-fraud policies and 
procedures;

b) Raising awareness of fraud risks and developing mechanisms to maximise 
the opportunities for fraud risk reporting;

c) Being involved in a joined-up response to whistleblowing allegations, 
referrals and other concerns including those received under the Council’s 
Anti-Money Laundering Policy;

d) Investigation of concerns/ allegations of financial or other irregularity;
e) Liaising with Greater Manchester Police to support criminal prosecutions;
f) Delivering a programme of proactive anti-fraud reviews;
g) Liaising with Council officers and/or schools in the Borough directly on 

various issues associated with minimising the risk of fraud;
h) Providing advice and support to managers across the Council in their own 

investigation of irregularities;
i) Providing advice and recommendations to managers on appropriate 

controls to help prevent and detect fraud and corruption; and
j) Monitoring anti-fraud activity across the Council.

4.11 In 2018/19 Internal Audit spent a total of 100 days on anti-fraud work. This 
consisted of 48 days reactive and 52 proactive (including the NFI). In this 
regard we note that a former RBC employee was sentenced in February 2019 
to 18 month’s imprisonment relating to a business rates fraud which was 
identified through internal checks in 2016. Various other defendants who had 
no direct association with the Council but who were implicated in the fraud 
received community work orders. This demonstrates the zero tolerance 
approach to fraud adopted by the Council. Recovery of the amount lost 
through the fraud is now being pursued though the Courts in accordance with 
the provisions of the Proceeds of Crime Act.

4.12 The Council’s approach to dealing with fraud extends beyond the Monitoring 
Officer and Internal Audit to all Council Services where appropriate, including 
schools.

4.13 The Council’s Counter Fraud Team, which forms part of the Internal Audit 
team, is a team that was established in March 2015 following the migration of 
housing benefit investigations to the DWP. This was as a result of the creation 
of a single fraud investigation service (SFIS) within the DWP to investigate 
benefit fraud. It was therefore agreed that a local counter fraud function be 
retained within the Council in order to investigate non-benefit fraud, e.g. local 
council tax support, council tax discounts, business rate reliefs and 
exemptions, blue badges, Adult Care ‘personal budgets’ etc. following the 
localism agenda; the need to minimise fraud and maximise income for the 
Council was key to this decision. 

Page 48



4.14 In addition to the above, the Counter Fraud Team is also a key member of the 
Partnership Enforcement Team (PET), which is co-located with the GMP and 
other Council enforcement staff such as Public Protection, Private Sector 
Housing Enforcement, Community Safety, RBH enforcement and more 
recently DWP Fraud officers. The focus of the PET is in tackling fraud and 
crime across the Borough.

4.15 In general terms, there is a continuing drive to ensure that Service 
management are generally more aware of their fraud risks, and that they take 
ownership to ensure that adequate controls are in place to minimise against 
these risks.

Counter Fraud Team

4.16 A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team in 2018/19 is 
set out below.

Performance

4.17 A total of 681 fraud referrals were received during 2018/19 (compared against 
1,020 in 2017/18).  There has been a noticeable difference in the amount of 
referrals received from April 2018, and it is thought that this is partly due to 
staff changes. The referrals are currently being reviewed and work will take 
place to generate more referrals including fraud awareness training.  

Typical sources of these referrals are from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), 
the Partnership Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC 
employees. A significant number of these do not progress to formal 
investigation by the team as they are either passed to the DWP or closed due 
to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is not enough information to 
progress the matter.

4.18 In total for 2018/19 the team achieved savings of £528,787. This figure derives 
from successful investigations into transactions associated with a number of 
Service areas including Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge 
and Adult Care, as well as additional income from fraud financial penalties, 
administrative penalties and court costs. 

4.19 As referred to at 1.2 above, 82% of referrals resulted in positive outcomes.

National Fraud Initiative

4.20 The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received from 
the NFI. 

The Team have continued to check data received in the 2017/2018 and 
2018/2019 NFI Single Person Discount, Council Tax matches. Over £25,000 
in savings has been achieved from the NFI proactive visits. 

Page 49



The NFI Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support work from 2016/2017 has 
come to an end. The recommended matches have been checked and 
samples of the key reports have also been checked.  Housing Benefit savings 
of over £35,000 have been identified, as well as Council Tax Support savings 
of over £10,000. 

The most recent data match for Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support was 
received in January 2019. The Counter Fraud Team is currently sifting and 
checking the data.  

Rochdale Borough Council Business Rates Team and Counter Fraud Team 
participated in the Business Rates Fraud NFI Pilot. The Fraud team have 
found savings of over £9,000. 

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

4.21 The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies were made to 550 Data 
Protection Requests in 2018/2019, not including the work that is completed in 
the PET. 

4.22 Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, skills 
and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to prevent and 
detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-agency teams 
attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; Divisional Tasking 
Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community Cohesion & Equality; 
Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, 
RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service officials.

4.23 The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 226 ‘police checks’ on Rochdale 
BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and absconders.  

In addition, fraud referrals are also received from the PET:
 7 are currently under investigation;
 25 PET fraud referrals were closed throughout the year;
 9 were passed to DWP;
 2 were closed fraud proven - both customers accepted a Council Tax 

Support Fraud Financial Penalty;
 10 were closed with overpayments and savings or positive outcomes; and
 4 were closed with no fraud found or did not need to be investigated.

4.24 The experienced investigators have participated in days of action and 
proactive visits throughout the year, which has resulted in savings being 
generated in respect of Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Support.

Page 50



Reactive Fraud Cases

4.25 A number of allegations of fraud were referred to Internal Audit during the year 
which were subject to initial investigation.  Of these, 4 involved Internal Audit 
spending time further investigating various related issues that resulted in 
internal disciplinary measures and/or referral to the police.  Where 
appropriate, significant outcomes and lessons learned from all such work are 
shared with the Audit and Governance Committee through the Internal Audit 
quarterly reporting on an ongoing basis but only at the point a final conclusion 
is reached. 

Proactive Anti-fraud work

4.26 Some of the key areas of focus during the year included the following;

National Fraud Initiative

4.27 The Council fully participates in the biennial National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
data matching exercise that is run by the Cabinet Office.  The NFI is a 
proactive anti-fraud initiative which matches electronic data within and 
between public and private sector bodies in order to highlight possible 
instances of fraud and error.  Data from various Council systems is provided 
by participants to the Cabinet Office, and IT data matching facilities are then 
used to analyse, compare and ultimately to match this data in accordance with 
set criteria for doing so.  The matched data is then returned to us in the form 
of a series of reports that are then checked by appropriate staff to determine 
whether fraud is suspected, or whether the data is present on the report due to 
error, or indeed due to genuine reasons.  

4.28 The current NFI exercise (2018/19) is still ongoing with some data matches 
having been checked and others still to be checked.

Progress with the NFI is monitored closely by the Council’s NFI Key Contact 
and reported to the Chief Finance Officer and the Finance Portfolio Holder if 
significant outcomes need to be brought to their attention.

Typical monetary related outcomes from recent NFI exercises are that funds 
are recovered in respect of the following areas:

 from duplicate payments to suppliers;
 from people claiming Housing Benefit inappropriately;
 from overpayments of pension to deceased people; and
 from overpayment of residential care fees to deceased people.

Actual outcomes from the most recent NFI to date include:

 0 frauds;
 29 errors but with no financial value due to the nature of the errors, 

such as issues with blue badges as noted below.

Page 51



Therefore whilst no amounts have yet been recovered as a result of this 
exercise, checking of data continues. This also excludes NFI for CTAX SPD 
which is referred to separately below.

4.29 Non-monetary outcomes from the NFI are also important too, such as 
information leading to the cancellation of several blue badge parking permits 
as a result of badge holder’s now being deceased, thus minimising the risk of 
family/friends using the badge instead.  It is noted that these are not due to 
fraudulent activity, merely the fact that official records show the badge holder 
is deceased yet the Council had not been informed.  However, cancelling 
badges in this way ensures that the badge cannot be renewed when it expires, 
thus proactively nullifying the risk of someone fraudulently reapplying and 
having the badge renewed in the name of the deceased person.

4.30 NFI – Business Rates Pilot

The Cabinet Office is in the process of developing its range of NFI facilities still 
further.  As part of this development a pilot exercise has been undertaken 
specifically to cover business rates data.  Rochdale Council took part in this 
exercise, the main aim of which was to identify fraud and error in the business 
rates system in areas such as Small Business Rates Relief (SBRR). 

Rochdale Council identified a saving of over £9k on one particular account. 

Internal Data Matching

4.31 Internal Audit also makes use of various standard IT facilities and specialised 
audit software (ACL) in order to analyse and match data from key corporate 
systems to establish patterns and discrepancies which may be an indicator of 
fraud.  This work is useful as it supplements the biennial NFI exercise with 
data analysis that is current and absolutely meaningful at the time of 
processing, thereby meaning that the opportunity to prevent and detect fraud 
is reduced still further.

4.32 Examples of this include:

 Work is always undertaken to analyse and further refine data received 
from the Cabinet Office relating to Council Tax Single Person Discount 
fraud.  This allows for limited staffing resource to be targeted at 
checking data matches of greater quality.

 A data match, that in a previous NFI exercise highlighted a £70k fraud 
at the Council, is recreated bi-annually to check the authenticity of 
instances where members of staff and companies trading with the 
Council have the same bank account details.  The small number of data 
matches that were identified as being in this category were found to 
exist for genuine reasons e.g. Council employee is wife/ husband/ 
partner of someone that owns a company that trades with the Council 
and they have a shared bank account into which both salary and 

Page 52



payments for goods/services are paid.
 A test is performed to ensure that staff working for the Council are not 

being paid via the payroll system and also by payment of invoices for 
the same work.  An example of where this could potentially occur is 
with consultants and temporary agency/contract workers.  No such 
cases have been identified to date.

General Anti-fraud Training

4.33 An on-line training package specifically aligned with the local government 
Fighting Fraud Locally (FFL) strategy has been rolled out to officers and 
Members via the e-learning platform.  This same training is also part of the 
corporate induction process for all new starters.

Whistleblowing Policy

4.34 The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy aligns with published best practice 
(British Standard PAS 1998:2008) and is designed to make it as easy as 
possible for someone to report a concern.  Concerns are reported under this 
policy, with Internal Audit keeping metrics in this regard in order to be able to 
measure the ongoing effectiveness of this policy. The existence and use of 
this policy continues to be promoted to all staff via online media such as the 
Intranet.

4 such referrals were reported and dealt with in 2018/19.
 
Anti-Money Laundering Policy

4.35 A policy is in place and global communications have been issued to increase 
staff awareness of this area of risk.  

Council Tax Single Person Discount (SPD)

4.36 Resources continue to be carefully allocated and used in order to ensure that 
proportionate efforts are invested in minimising this particular risk of fraud.  
Both the NFI data matching reports and selective services offered from 
external companies such as credit checking companies are used whenever 
required to assist the Council in ensuring that SPD fraud is minimised.  

NFI data matches are received in December each year from the Cabinet 
Office containing details of addresses in the Borough with a SPD but where 
the Electoral Register indicates that there is more than one person living at 
that address.

Actual outcomes to date from the latest NFI SPD exercise include:

 65 frauds;
 Representing a total value of £25,000.

Page 53



Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy (AFACP)

4.37 The AFACP itself is reviewed on an annual basis and re-published on the 
Intranet and Council website accordingly. 

Key priorities for 2019/20

4.38 Time and resource is normally allocated in the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 
the prevention and detection of fraud across the following areas:

 Proactive Work - Internal Audit will engage in work aimed at 
minimising the risk of fraud before it occurs by engaging in a range of 
activities.  The Counter Fraud Team will continue to develop its remit 
and focus for identifying fraud in a range of areas and to ensure that 
any proven frauds lead to prosecution and recovery of any financial 
loss;

 Reactive Work - Internal Audit is ready and equipped to provide a 
service to management by leading and / or assisting with cases of 
suspected fraud that may arise;

 Raising awareness - Internal Audit will continue to lead and / or 
support Council services to improve levels of awareness of fraud risks 
amongst managers, staff and partners;

 Communication - Internal Audit will seek to improve the effective 
communication of Council policy, procedures and codes relating to anti-
fraud;

 Fraud risk assessment - Internal Audit will build upon work already 
performed in this area and ensure that fraud risks remain current and 
receive the attention of management in proportion to the risk faced;

 External liaison - Internal Audit will further build upon links established 
with the police and the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) to ensure 
that future fraud investigations proceed as smoothly as possible;

 Co-ordination - Internal Audit will continue to work with colleagues, 
especially those in the HR Service and the Counter Fraud Team, to 
share expertise and maximise the efficiency and effectiveness of anti-
fraud activity across the Council;

 Fraud monitoring - Internal Audit will continue to maintain intelligence 
and oversight of fraud cases and outcomes in order to support decision 
making for management;

 Collaborative Working - Internal Audit will continue to fully participate 
in the AGMA Fraud Group and to ensure that learning points and other 
good practice is considered and implemented at Rochdale Council 
where appropriate; the Counter Fraud Team is also a key member of 
the Partnership Enforcement Team which continues to have a very 

Page 54



positive impact on tackling crime and fraud across the Borough; and

 New Initiatives - Internal Audit will ensure that relevant new initiatives 
in the anti-fraud field are duly considered and good practice 
implemented within Rochdale Council where necessary e.g. 
participating in work led by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government into the risks of fraud and corruption in local 
government procurement.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

Within this report consideration is given to the risks associated with fraud 
faced by the Authority and the processes and controls through which these 
risks are mitigated in order to ensure that the Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy is both embedded and complied with.

6.

Consultation

7. Not applicable.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None.

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 55



Appendix 1 Fighting Fraud Locally Self-Assessment Checklist – June 2019

Yes No Comments and Actions

1. 



Relevant risks are on the risk register and regularly reviewed. Updates 
on fraud and corruption risks are reported to Audit and Governance 
Committee on at least an annual basis together with an evaluation of 
the Council’s response to these risks and the overall approach to fraud.

2. 



The Council has assessed the risks highlighted within both the PPP 
and FFL publications.  In terms of horizon scanning, the Council does 
take account of the “emerging risks” sections in national publications 
such as PPP etc., and relevant intelligence is gained by both Internal 
Audit and the Counter Fraud Team through the various networks in 
which they are directly involved and input to on an ongoing basis.

3. 



There is an annual fraud report that is presented to Audit and 
Governance Committee in June/July each year which sets out a 
summary of the approach to and outcomes from both proactive and 
reactive anti-fraud work, as well as the response to best practice in 
fraud from checklists such as this.  

P
age 56



Yes No Comments and Actions

4.



The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy (AFACP) is in place and is 
actively promoted periodically to all staff with a particular emphasis 
normally being given to whistleblowing arrangements.

5. 



Various arrangements are in place, including documents such as the 
Codes of Conduct for both staff and Members, Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy, Whistleblowing Policy etc., Code of Ethics, anti-fraud 
training awareness training. All of these also form part of the Corporate 
Induction process.

6. 



There are various examples of fraud risks being included on the 
Corporate and Service Risk Registers.

7.



Internal Audit continues to work proactively with all areas of the Council 
to ensure that input and advice on controls is provided and embedded 
within all new significant developments, which will always include a 
consideration of fraud risks. Similarly, the Risk Manager liaises directly 
with all Service areas offering advice on risk management. The work 
undertaken in all these areas is reported regularly to Audit and 
Governance Committee.

8.



There have been various examples of this both in internal and external 
communications, including the local press/media.  The Council regards 
it as an important thing to do in order to act as a deterrent to others.

P
age 57



Yes No Comments and Actions

9.



The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy dictates the Council’s overall 
approach and policy to cover all such arrangements and this continues 
to be actively promoted to all staff within the Council.  All staff must also 
undertake a short e-learning module on the subject of anti-fraud as part 
of the Corporate Induction process.  An informed workforce helps to 
ensure that fraudulent activity has a better chance of being noticed; 
also that staff are aware of what to do in terms of reporting any 
suspicions they may have. Both Internal Audit and the Counter Fraud 
Team have a well-developed pool of resources and tools to support the 
detection and subsequent investigation of any alleged fraud.

10.



The Head of Internal Audit liaises closely with the Monitoring Officer 
who takes a lead in relation to developing and implementing policies 
supporting ethical governance. Internal Audit takes a lead in terms of 
the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy.  With regard to compliance, this 
is primarily assessed on a rolling basis through work included on the 
Internal Audit Annual Plan. Mechanisms are also in place for any 
issues on conduct and behaviour to be reported and followed up as 
considered appropriate, with any outcomes being reported through to 
Audit and Governance Committee via the Monitoring Officer.  NFI 
reports are also checked with regard to information on the register of 
interests.

11.



It has been confirmed with the HR Service that appropriate vetting 
checks are undertaken at the recruitment stage.  Relevant publications 
in this area of expertise, such as “Slipping through the Net: Staff vetting 
guide for local authorities”, have been considered and factored into 
working practices where appropriate.

P
age 58



Yes No Comments and Actions

12.



Both Members and staff should be aware of this requirement via the 
respective Codes of Conduct which are communicated globally and 
also form part of the Corporate Induction process.  

Compliance is monitored and reported as per the response to question 
10 above.

13.



Aside from the responsibility placed on all staff and Elected Members 
to play their part in ensuring this culture is embedded in all Council 
activities via the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, both Internal Audit 
and the Counter Fraud Team take a lead in supporting this culture 
through global communications, training, proactive and reactive work, 
liaison with other enforcement partners, prosecutions and financial 
recovery work.

14.



A Whistleblowing Policy is in place and forms part of the wider Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Policy.  Internal Audit keeps a record of the 
number of referrals made under the policy.  Users of the policy are 
clearly signposted to external sources if they feel that is a better or 
more appropriate way of channelling their referral.

15.



The standard terms and conditions of contract to which all contractors 
and third parties sign up to includes, in Section 3, an obligation to 
comply with all mandatory policies of the Authority, one of which is the 
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy which includes the Whistleblowing 
Policy. The Whistleblowing Policy clearly states that no discrimination 
against whistle-blowers will be tolerated and their identity will be 
protected in line with their wishes. 

P
age 59



Yes No Comments and Actions

16.



Internal Audit work is directed by a risk based audit plan which 
supports the delivery of an overall opinion on the Council’s control 
environment, which includes an assessment of the management of 
fraud risks. Furthermore, a founding principle of the Counter Fraud 
Team is the Council’s desire to minimise fraud and maximise income 
for the Council. The complement of staff within this team continues to 
be assessed in the light of the risks assessed and outcomes achieved. 

17.



The work of the Internal Audit function is directed by an Annual Audit 
Plan which is approved by Audit and Governance Committee in April of 
each year. The remit of Internal Audit covers all services and activities 
undertaken by the Council, including the management of any 
relationships with third party contractors. The proactive anti-fraud remit 
of the Counter Fraud Team continues to be challenged and reviewed 
as new issues are identified and outcomes will continue to be reported 
through to Audit and Governance Committee. 

18.



Monthly reports are produced by the Counter Fraud Team in order to 
monitor and manage workload, levels of performance and outcomes.  
Reference to some of these outcomes is included within the main body 
of this report and updates are provided to Audit and Governance 
Committee via Internal Audit quarterly reports. Data is also made 
available externally in compliance with the Transparency Code.

19.



Officers within Internal Audit have always had access to all areas of the 
Council in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter which is approved 
by the Audit and Governance Committee. Similarly, the Counter Fraud 
Team will be granted access to whatever confidential information is 
considered appropriate to further any investigations that they 
undertake.

P
age 60



Yes No Comments and Actions

20.



Publication of such cases, particularly when a positive outcome is 
achieved by the Authority, is actively encouraged as evidenced by 
certain cases which were in the local public media following the issue 
of press releases by the Communications team. 

21.



A system is in place to risk assess referrals received by the Counter 
Fraud Team. Any referrals to Internal Audit are subject to an initial 
assessment to determine if further work is appropriate.

22.



All these areas are covered within the Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy, specifically in the Counter Fraud Prosecution and Sanction 
Policy, and covered within the work of the Counter Fraud Team and 
Internal Audit.

23.



Aside from the Internal Audit Annual Plan which is approved by Audit 
and Governance Committee each April, the approach to and outcomes 
from the fraud response plan is communicated at least annually to 
Audit and Governance Committee in June/July of each year, with 
periodic updates provided where considered relevant and appropriate. 
Furthermore, the Counter Fraud Team reports directly to the Head of 
Internal Audit, and is co-located with Internal Audit on floor 2 of No. 1 
Riverside, which enhances the links between the two teams.

P
age 61



Yes No Comments and Actions

24.



This is always the case and has been evidenced by way of recovery via 
the Proceeds of Crime Act where appropriate. This is also 
demonstrated by the financial recoveries achieved by the Counter 
Fraud Team, supported by prosecutions where a fraud is proven.

25.



The zero tolerance approach is a cornerstone of the Council’s Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Policy.  Reports to Committee are normally taken 
by the Head of Internal Audit on a quarterly basis and annually.

26.



Proactive work is factored into the work of the Counter Fraud Team, 
Partnership Enforcement Team and anti-fraud work within the wider 
Internal Audit function.  This work programme tackles most, if not all, of 
the areas identified as more susceptible to loss through fraud in 
accordance with existing knowledge, recent experience, current fraud 
risk assessments, intelligence from local networks and outputs from 
national publications. Specific areas covered by the Counter Fraud 
Team are set out in the main body of the report above.

27.



Collaborative working is a key theme in the work of the Council’s 
Counter Fraud Team.  Please refer to the main body of this report for 
more detail e.g. involvement with the Partnership Enforcement Team 
(PET).

P
age 62



Yes No Comments and Actions

28.



Examples of data sharing are in place, with this still being a growth 
area in terms of the desire to work as efficiently and effectively, not only 
to minimise the risk of fraud, but to deliver an overall better service to 
the citizens of the Borough via the Public Service Reform agenda.  
Safeguards are in place, and continue to be further developed, in order 
to ensure that data sharing is done legally e.g. Privacy Impact 
Assessments, Data Sharing Agreements and training for staff to 
understand their responsibilities in this regard. The operations of the 
Partnership Enforcement Team also involve close liaison with and 
sharing of relevant data with other enforcement agencies.

29.



Data analytics, i.e. the use of ICT facilities to process and analyse 
quantities of data is used in certain instances.  Examples of this in 
practice include analysing datasets relating to Council Tax Single 
Person Discount, Blue Badge, Payroll and Creditors.

Output from data analytics exercises is either used to influence the 
direction of anti-fraud resources in terms of assisting with the more 
focused targeting of investigatory work, or by providing more timely and 
complete assurance to management where the output indicates no 
fraudulent activity.

30.



Internal Audit plays a lead role in facilitating the NFI process to ensure 
deadlines are achieved and appropriate action is taken on the data 
matches identified. Progress and outcomes are reported periodically to 
the Audit and Governance Committee as well as to the Chief Finance 
Officer and Portfolio Holder for Finance.

P
age 63



Yes No Comments and Actions

31.



The Counter Fraud Team has a mix of skills and experience, with all 
staff being appropriately trained and accredited commensurate with 
their job role.  Staff in Internal Audit that take responsibility with anti-
fraud matters are also appropriately accredited and/or trained to do so.

32.



The Counter Fraud Team comprises staff with a mix of knowledge and 
experience, some of whom have a strong depth of experience in the 
areas covered by anti-fraud work. This knowledge is shared within the 
team primarily through on the job training, supplemented by more 
formal training where considered necessary and appropriate. External 
training opportunities to enhance core skills and knowledge are also 
pursued on an ongoing basis.

33. 



Strong links are maintained with both internal and external enforcement 
agencies through the Partnership Enforcement Team which offers 
access to a wide variety of skills, knowledge and resource to support 
fraud investigatory work. The Police have offered the use of their 
financial investigators if required for Proceeds of Crime Act/ financial 
investigations. Alongside this, close links are made with the National 
Anti-Fraud Network which also provides specialist services where they 
may be required.

P
age 64



Yes No Comments and Actions

34.



Reports covering instances of proven fraud always cover two areas:
 the investigation into substantiating whether the fraud took 

place or not and who was responsible; and
 an analysis of the root cause and what controls can be 

implemented to minimise future risk.
In the event that control weaknesses are identified, actions are agreed 
with management to resolve these issues. Furthermore, where such 
weaknesses may apply to other Council Services, a more corporate 
audit report or communication may be issued to all Service areas to 
share the lessons learned and ensure that controls are embedded to 
mitigate the risk of such issues occurring in all Services.

P
age 65



 

Mazars LLP – One St Peters Square - Manchester - M2 3DE 

Tel: +44 (0) 161 238 9200 – Fax: +44 (0) 161 238 9201 – www.mazars.co.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership 
registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London 
E1W 1DD. 
  
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK and Ireland by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit 
registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. 
 
VAT number: 839 8356 73 

 

  

Mr Steve Rumbelow 

Chief Executive 

Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 

Number One Riverside 

Smith Street 

Rochdale 

OL16 1XU 

  

  

Direct line +44( 0) 161 238 9248 

Email Karen.Murray@mazars.co.uk 

  23 April 2019 

 

Dear Mr Rumbelow 

Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council – External Audit Fees 2019/20 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has consulted on its scale of fees for 2019/20.  It has not 

made any changes to the work programme for 2019/20 and scale fees remain at the same level as the 

previous year.  The scale of fees is published at: 

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/2019-20-audit-fee-scale/individual-scale-fees-for-local-government-

bodies/  

Fees 

The table below includes our proposed fee, which is in line with the scale fee.   

Audit area 
Scale fee  

(2019/20) 

Proposed fee 

(2019/20) 

Provisional fee 

(2018/19)* 

Audit of the accounts and VFM 

conclusion 

£105,007 plus VAT £105,007 plus VAT £105,007 plus VAT 

*subject to completion of the 2018/19 work. 

The scale fee assumes that you provide us with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with 

supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes.  It also assumes that the level of risk and complexity 

associated with your financial statements remains unchanged and that we do not identify any new risks to 

our VFM conclusion.  Where we need to undertake work additional to that planned as part of the fee-

setting process, we will communicate with you and PSAA about our fee in line with the requirements of 

PSAA’s Terms of Appointment which are available from their website.  

At this stage, we have not been engaged to undertake any non-audit work, such as grants assurance, for 

2019/20. 

 

 

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 9

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/2019-20-audit-fee-scale/individual-scale-fees-for-local-government-bodies/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/2019-20-audit-fee-scale/individual-scale-fees-for-local-government-bodies/


 

  

 

    2/4 

 

Outline of work programme 

The proposed audit fee covers: 

 the audit of your financial statements; 

 work to conclude on your arrangements for securing value for money; and 

 the assurance we are required to provide to the National Audit Office on the consistency of your Whole 

of Government Accounts return with the audited financial statements. 

If required, we will address any legal challenge work prompted by local electors at the rate prescribed by 

PSAA. 

At this stage we have yet to complete our risk assessment for 2019/20 and we will issue our Audit Strategy 

Memorandum in early 2020.  This will communicate to you the risks that we identify in relation to the 

work programme outlined above and the action we plan to take in response.  

Our method statement 

Our contract with PSAA contains a method statement which sets out our commitment to deliver quality 

audit services, our audit approach and what you can expect from us.  We have included a summary of our 

method statement as Appendix 1 to this letter.  This is provided as a benchmark for the Council to provide 

feedback on our performance as its auditor when PSAA issues its satisfaction survey later in 2019. 

If you have any queries about the content of this letter, please do not hesitate to contact me or your 

engagement manager, Daniel Watson. 

Yours sincerely 

 
Karen Murray 

Director 

cc Neil Thornton – Director of Resources. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



 

  

 

    3/4 

 

Appendix 1  

Public Sector Audit Appointments Method Statement 

Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council opted into the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) 

Appointing Person scheme which started in 2018/19.  PSAA appointed Mazars LLP as auditors, and is 

responsible under the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 for monitoring compliance with 

the contract and is committed to ensuring good quality audit services are provided by its suppliers.  Details 

of PSAA’s audit quality monitoring arrangements are available from its website, www.psaa.co.uk. 

Our contract with PSAA contains a method statement which sets out the firm’s commitment to deliver 

quality audit services, our audit approach and what clients can expect from us.  A summary of the four key 

themes in our method statement is shown below.  It is provided as a guide and reference for liaising with 

us, and a benchmark for you to provide feedback on our performance to PSAA via its survey in Autumn 

2019. 

Key theme 1 – Knowledge, technical competence and understanding 

Your audit team will understand the public sector and the environment within which you operate.  They 

will develop and maintain a deep understanding of your organisation, the opportunities available to you 

and risks which you are facing.  They will do so principally to enable them to discharge their 

responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice as effectively as possible, but also to provide constructive 

challenge and support to your officers and members.  

Mazars is committed to the continuing development of all our staff and members of your audit team will 

access training and development opportunities specifically for their role as public sector auditors.  They 

will also be supported by a team of specialists in public sector audit and financial reporting who are 

experienced in providing guidance to clients and auditors, and to providing leadership on emerging issues 

across the sector.  

Key theme 2 – Quality and efficiency 

As explained in our Transparency Report, Mazars is a firm that is committed to quality in everything that 

we do and this is the core message that underpins our public sector audit work.  We have a central team 

dedicated to supporting our public sector auditors to deliver high-quality services to all clients.  You can 

expect your audit team to have access to the latest technical information, bespoke audit tools developed 

specially for the sector and access to a suite of specialist training courses. 

The way in which we communicate with you and your officers fosters a working relationship built on 

mutual trust and the objective to deliver a high-quality and efficient audit.  Our audit team will work 

alongside your finance team to ensure a flexible approach to audit resourcing so that we deliver our work 

when it is convenient with you, as far as statutory deadlines allow.   

We are also committed to supporting improvements in the sector, harnessing our knowledge and 

information gathered from across our public sector and corporate client base.  This can be as simple as 

holding post-implementation meetings with officers following completion of the audit, through to 

benchmarking and detailed reviews of areas of risk, delivered as part of our Value for Money 

responsibilities.  

  

Page 68

http://www.psaa.co.uk/
https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/About-us/Corporate-publications/Transparency-reports/Mazars-UK-Transparency-Report-2017-2018


 

  

 

    4/4 

 

Key theme 3 – Openness and Communication 

We value open and honest two-way communication with our clients as we believe that without it, you 

cannot develop an effective and professional working relationship.  You will have access to senior 

members of your audit team, including the Key Audit Partner and Engagement Manager, at appropriate 

times throughout the audit cycle.  They will be on hand to discuss emerging issues and will work with you 

and your teams to understand your business, the risks you are facing and the support we may be able to 

provide.   

Your audit team will be available to provide initial views on proposed accounting policy changes, complex 

or unusual transactions and other matters that may impact upon our opinion on your financial statements or 

our Value for Money conclusion.  Our technical specialists will provide your finance team with an annual 

financial reporting workshop that will guide them through changes in the CIPFA Code and underlying 

accounting standards, and provide them with an early view on areas of audit focus. 

We understand the importance of effective communication with the Audit Committee, and will ensure that 

our reports to them are timely and written in an easily understood, jargon-free manner.  We will always 

ensure that a senior member of your audit team attends Audit Committee meetings. 

 Key theme 4 – A commitment to social responsibility and social value 

We are committed to public sector audit and assurance work, and have set out our commitment by 

establishing Public Services as one of our core strategic markets.  In order to deliver high-quality services 

to our clients, we understand the need to have skilled and knowledgeable team members and will develop 

the next generation of public sector auditors and accountants through continuing and expanding our 

graduate traineeship and school-leaver programmes.  We have set targets to ensure that a significant 

proportion of our entrants through these programmes come from disadvantaged backgrounds that are 

traditionally under-represented in the accountancy profession.  These targets include: 

- Taking on an additional 10 Access Accountancy interns in every year of our PSAA contract, taking 

the total to 30 per year;  

- Employing 10 graduates onto our accounting trainee programme, including at least 4 from 

disadvantaged backgrounds; and 

- Increasing the number of entrants to our firm through our school-leaver programme which is focused 

on attracting candidates from disadvantaged backgrounds. 

Your audit team will be actively involved in the corporate social responsibility work that we undertake as a 

firm.  As part of our contract with PSAA, we have committed to granting all of our public sector audit staff  

an additional day to get involved in charitable and other projects that contribute to their local areas.  

Mazars will also be a founding member of the Centre for Social Value which will promote learning on 

effective local interventions to reduce social inequality and improve social mobility.  As one of our clients, 

you can expect to have opportunities to contribute to research and programmes implemented by the Centre.  

 

 

Page 69



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 17 June 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Annual Report 2018/199

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during the 2018/19 year. The risk management self-assessment outcome of 
72.38% compliance indicates that risk processes are embedded in Council 
decision-making.

The Leadership team has good knowledge of the highest priority risks across 
the organisation via regular updates from the Risk Manager on high-scoring 
Service risks, and their management of the overarching Corporate risk 
register. 

The Insurance team is successfully handling incoming claims and the 
placement of the Council’s insurance programme cost-effectively. The report 
confirms how the team has resolved claims backlog issues in 2018 to achieve 
a total cost-mitigation on settled claims for the year of £3,758,869.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of assurance 
provided through the management of risk and insurance services.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and oversight of governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 2018/19 year for all 
Council Services.

Page 70

Agenda Item 10



Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

The Risk Management Framework

The following points relate to developments within the Risk Management 
Framework, which is defined as how risk management links with other 
organisational strategies such as planning, governance and reporting.   

Risk Management Group
The Risk Management Group (RMG) now comprises 26 risk champions 
representing the 29 Service teams holding corporate risk registers within 
Rochdale Council’s risk management structure. The RMG enables discussion 
of risk initiatives and the sharing of best practice across teams. Meetings in 
2018/19 have included discussion on the re-scoring of risks onto the new 5x5 
risk matrix and consultation on the implementation of the new Pentana 
software system.

Reporting of Risks
The Risk Manager has attended SMT meetings in the Neighbourhoods, 
Public Health, Finance and Information Customers & Communities teams 
during the year.

The Risk Manager also provides update reports to the Governance Board 
and all Audit and Governance Committee meetings, ensuring that both 
bodies are able to provide independent challenge to risk activity.

Risk Management updates reported to Leadership Team have been 
enhanced to include summaries of the highest ranking Service risks and to 
update on compliance with risk review timescales. The new format of 
reporting has provided senior management with awareness of high priority 
risks in the services which would not have previously been visible under the 
Corporate risk register.

Governance of Risk Management
Risk management self-assessments have been completed by Service teams to 
rate compliance with agreed risk management processes across the Authority. 
It was reported to Leadership team in October 2018 that an average of 72.38% 
of assessment criteria was assessed as met across the Service teams. This 
result is lower than the 76.00% outcome for 2015/16, and can be partly 
explained by the application of increased standards when evaluating the extent 
of risk coverage, and the disruptive effect of the high turnover of risk 
champions during the year. Action plans have since been implemented by 
teams to address process gaps identified by their self-assessments.

Independent assessment of risk management standards is also provided within 
RBC Internal Audit inspections, and the annual External Audit report.

Page 71



5.

6

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

Corporate Risk Register
The Leadership Team have responsibility for management of the large-scale 
risks listed under the Corporate Risk Register. Risk issues are discussed by 
Directors regularly in Leadership Team meetings (see point 4.2 above), and 
periodic reviews of individual risks and mitigation actions are carried out by 
owners through the year. Following discussion at the Leadership Team 
meeting held on 7th May 2019 Directors are currently carrying out a review of 
the appropriateness of risk descriptions, expected to be completed by August.

The Corporate Risk Register is attached as Appendix 1.

Service Risk Management

Coverage of RBC Service Risk Registers
There are currently registers in place in 28 different Service areas across the 
Council. Either through self-assessment action plans or separate contact with 
the Risk Manager, improvements have been made to the relevance of risks 
recorded in registers to ensure management teams are well-informed.

For example, more risks have been added to the ICT Services risk register to 
evidence the handling of risks related to recruitment and ICT infrastructure.

Integrated Care Risk Management
The Risk Manager provided assistance to the project management (PMO) 
team of the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) during October 2018 to develop comprehensive risk registers for each 
of the 39 intervention projects.

The Locality Plan programme is directing service integration and 
transformation across Rochdale’s health and social care services. The risks 
identified will be owned jointly by the CCG, the Health Provider Services and 
the Council and therefore combined governance and monitoring procedures 
are required to address the key risks to the operation of all projects. A joint 
Rochdale BC / HMR CCG Risk Management Policy will be issued by the Risk 
Manager in 2019 to formally confirm the joint risk management procedures that 
have been agreed to date.

The risks of Locality Plan intervention projects are currently reported in 
Highlight reports to the Integrated Commissioning Board on a monthly basis. 

Developing Risk Management Effectiveness

Risk Management Training
The Risk Manager has delivered risk management training to managers and 
officers of the various Council teams where appropriate. This has included the 
training of new risk champions and risk owners in Children’s Services, 
Customer Access, Corporate Policy & Performance, Rochdale Development 
Agency and ICT Services teams. 
 

Page 72



7.2

7.3

8

Risk Management training for new Members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee was delivered on 20 June 2018. 

Risk Advice in Priority Service Areas
a) Flood Defences
Demountable flood barriers for use in protecting both the Number One 
Riverside property, or potentially other sites in the Borough in the event of a 
flood emergency, were procured in 2018. This decision was taken following 
risk assessment advice provided by an officer working group. The Insurance 
team are awaiting confirmation that a draft Flood Defence Activation Procedure 
prepared by the Building Surveying, Emergency Planning and Strategic 
Planning teams has been approved.
 
b) Advice to Integrated Health and Social Care Transformation Projects
The Risk Manager provided risk identification advice to delivery managers 
responsible for the Prevention and Access intervention projects under the 
Locality Plan. Guidance on which issues were to be included as key risks 
assisted in the preparation of risk registers in 2018.

Implementation of Pentana Risk Software
An implementation group consisting of the Risk Manager and  colleagues in 
the Corporate Policy, ICT Services and HMR CCG teams has been working to 
adopt separate risk, performance and project modules to Rochdale 
requirements.

The original 1 April 2019 launch date has been delayed until 1 July 2019 due 
to technical issues regarding data migration and configuration. Once 
implemented, the system will realise time savings due to the user-friendly 
design of the risk module, increased flexibility in report writing, and better 
‘cloud-based’ coordination of shared Council/CCG risks. The delay will not 
obstruct risk register activity across the Council because risk owners are able 
to continue updates on the existing Performance Manager system.

Risk Management Results

There are 3 Red risks to report -

Ref Service Risk Title

CSDR006
Children’s 
Services 

(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the 
financial position of the Service and its ability to 
provide services

CSCR001 Children’s Social 
Care

Retain a workforce able to successfully deliver a 
quality Children’s Social Care Service.

CSCR002 Children’s Social 
Care

Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service 
continues to increase, leading to failure to 
manage within budget.

Please note that variations in RAG risk scores should not be viewed purely as 
a reflection of the effectiveness of risk control activity - risk scoring is also 
influenced by the severity of risks associated with the different Services and 

Page 73



9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

their capacity to mitigate. Further details regarding the factors considered 
when scoring the risks and the mitigation actions being implemented are 
provided under Appendix 2.

Insurance Team

Insurance Claims Workflow
A new Insurance Officer was recruited to the team from April 2018, in response 
to a business case to avoid missed claims portal deadlines, and therefore the 
excessive legal costs of working outside the portal. It was agreed that the 
added resource would reduce certain insurance costs incurred over the long-
term and generate a net saving for the Council.

The improved turnaround of insurance claims following this appointment has 
continued during 2019. In comparison to the peak of the claims investigations 
backlog of 151 in April 2018 the outstanding figure has not exceeded 20 
throughout 2019, and no claims portal deadlines have been missed. Claims 
settlements negotiated by the team now benefit from being in a stronger 
position to fully investigate claims.

June 2019 Insurance Renewals
The Insurance team are currently negotiating the renewal of Rochdale 
Council’s programme of insurance policies effective from June 2019. The 
Senior Insurance Officer coordinated the notification of updated Council asset 
values and risk management details to our insurers. Renewal has been offered 
at unchanged premium rates (in accordance with the long term agreement 
negotiated at the 2017 tender), with cost variations caused by changes to 
asset values and budget estimates only. RBC have experienced a vastly lower 
level of Highways claims incurred during 2018/19, in comparison to the Winter 
weather-related upturn in the previous year. Insurers were satisfied with the 
progress made to fulfil a Rochdale Highways plan which had been designed to 
reduce the risk of incidents related to pot-holes and other highways defects 
going forward.

Performance
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from January 2018 
to March 2018 is set out below.

The Insurance Team received a total of 124 new claims notifications during 
quarter 4 – split 66 Highways, 40 Motor, 12 Public Liability, 1 Employers 
Liability and 5 Others. This figure demonstrates the effect of the mild weather 
conditions on Highways claims (when compared to 186 claims received in 
quarter 4 2017/18).

A total of 116 claims were closed by the team during quarter 4 – split 83 
Highways, 13 Motor, 13 Public Liability and 7 Employers Liability. These claims 
will largely not be the same newly notified claims referred to above. The claims 
handling process can run over a period of months or years, and therefore the 
team are working on a combination of new and existing cases.

Page 74



The Claims Cost Mitigation tables below confirm the difference between final 
settled amounts for claims closed against the highest reserve amounts for the 
same losses during the claims handling process. These statistics are a useful 
measure of the level of challenge put forward by the Insurance Team through 
their investigations, liaison with the relevant Services, and joint-effort with 
solicitors to defend against legal proceedings.

a) Claims Cost Mitigation Table for 2018/19 Q4

Month Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation

January 43 £270,016.58

February 39 £419,449.30

March 34 £733,625.51

Total 116 £1,423,091.39

b) Claims Cost Mitigation Table for Full 2018/19 Year

Quarter Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation

Q1 153 £489,873.85

Q2 156 £629,575.44

Q3 185 £1,216,328.87

Q4 116 £1,423,091.39

Total 610 £3,758,869.55

The tables show that the Insurance Team handled a total cost mitigation of 
£1,423,091.39 on settled claims costs during quarter 4, and an annual total of 
£3,758,869.55 for the 2018/19 year. Claims mitigation savings can be achieved 
for reasons such as the use of a Section 58 defence (under the Highways Act 
1980) to repudiate highways claims where the Council can prove reasonable 
measures have been taken to deal with defects, or where thorough 
investigations with Service teams provides evidence to repudiate or challenge 
general liability claims for negligent provision of social care services. The 
largest cost mitigation in quarter 4 was £437,793 for a highways claim where 
the causation circumstances enabled a denial of liability.

Page 75



Risk Management Plans for 2019/20

1) Launch of new Pentana risk software in July 2019
2) Issue of a joint Rochdale BC / CCG Risk Management Policy to apply to all 

risks across the combined Council and CCG organisation.
3) To provide guidance to the integrated health and social care services on 

the development of enhanced risk registers under the Locality Plan 
programme.

4) Continue to review the combined Risk Management and Insurance 
functions to identify further opportunities to increase effectiveness where 
we have shared objectives. 

5) Complete risk Management self-assessments to assess quality of Service 
risk procedures.

Costs and Budget Summary

10. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

11.

Consultation

12. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 76



Rochdale Risk Report 07 June 2019

Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register Risk Summary

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 06 Aug 19

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 19

P
age 77



CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 
the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed annually, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
annually   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2018/19 and 2019/20 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

30 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

P
age 78



working together)   

 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 79



CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Neil Thornton Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Aug 19

P
age 80



CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate 
risks    

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    The partnership Consequence Management Group (CMG) exists to provide early 
identification and intervention on community tensions and develop positive community 
cohesion and diversionary activities to mitigate risks of escalation in tension. The CMG to 
inform and take direction from RBC and Partners command structure.

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and Community 
Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in 
schools

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

P
age 81



 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sally McIvor Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 25 Nov 19

P
age 82



 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 25 Nov 19

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 83



P
age 84



Q4 2018/19 Red Risks Summary
Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 

Score

CSDR006 Children’s Services 
(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the financial position of the 
Service and its ability to provide services Gail Hopper 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  Locally, predicted pressures are being experienced as a result of an increase in demand for children’s social care services generally, 
numbers of children with child protection plans, increases in care proceedings, the number of cared for children, continuing increase in demand for children with special educational 
needs and / or disabilities and unaccompanied asylum seeking children. This reflects the picture both regionally and nationally.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  A Business Case for increased resources in line with areas of increased demand in children’s social care has 
been agreed; this has been worked upon with Finance colleagues and has been considered at informal Cabinet, the ICB and is to be presented to Cabinet for a formal decision. A five year 
sustainability strategy has also been developed, with key components to increase placement sufficiency through innovation and market management.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future?  The Senior Leadership Team regularly considers budget pressures collectively and in their separate management 
meetings. There are monthly meetings with the Chief Executive, the 151 Officer and Director of Resources, as well as regular meetings with the Leader and Portfolio Holder. This residual 
risk will be reviewed again at the end of Q1. Reduction in the risk score is dependent on the outcome of the Government Spending Review. 

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

CSCR001 Children’s Social Care Retain a workforce able to successfully deliver a quality Children’s Social 
Care service. Jill McGregor 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  Recruitment continues to be a priority area; the turnover rate continues to be high in some fieldwork services. There continues to be 
high levels of mobility of social workers across the Greater Manchester area, and the work context is challenging due to the demand pressures and the nature of the work. The risk score 
has been increased to 16 (Red) - based on a likelihood of 75% or above - following a Q4 review.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  A fortnightly Recruitment and Retention Group continues to be chaired by the Assistant Director; this 
comprises members of staff from across the organisation. The strategy to ensure Rochdale is the employer of choice and that recruited staff are well supported, includes a marketing 
strategy promoting our model of relational practice (Open Day held on 28th January 2019), regional Social Work Recruitment Fayre (May 2019), and work with a recruitment partner to 
fill critical managerial vacancies. Increased financial investment in the service will support a reduction in social work caseloads and recently agreed revisions to social worker terms and 
conditions will support continued recruitment and retention. Rochdale is a pilot authority for implementing NAAS (the National Assessment and Accreditation System) for social workers 
/ social work supervisors. There is a strong programme of support to enable practitioners to progress to accreditation.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future?  It is anticipated that the score set for this risk will begin to reduce towards the end of 2019/2020. Strategies have been 
developed and are now being implemented consistently which will support the workforce to become more stable.

P
age 85



Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

CSCR002 Children’s Services Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service continues to increases, 
leading to failure to manage within budget

Jill McGregor / 
Sandra Bowness 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  The growing child population in borough and growing demand is causing increased budget pressures in children’s social care and in the 
additional needs service (SEND). This reflects similar demands across the country. 91% of children’s services budgets overspent nationally in 2018/19. (Rochdale did not overspend last 
year.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  A five year sustainability strategy has been developed by reviewing and mapping levels of need and 
implications; reviewing the research and evidence base of what works; reviewing all children in external placements and working up a detailed investment strategy. This involves a 
Greater Manchester approach to implementing innovation programmes that have been successful elsewhere in the country. Progress is being made in Rochdale to develop these 
approaches, but will take time to deliver impact. One of the areas we cannot control is the inward migration, see below.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The sustainability strategy will over time support greater likelihood of managing demand within the designated budget. 
What the service is unable to predict is those demands emerging from children new to the authority. In the period between September and December almost 500 children new to the 
country and to the borough required school places – what is not known about these children is what level of social care needs they may present moving forward. These increases have 
been experienced in the borough over the last 3 years, but the 18/19 figures are much higher than in previous years (50% increase)

P
age 86


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Internal Audit Quarter 4 Report 2018/19
	7 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
	Append. 1 for Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
	Append. 2 for Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
	Append. 3 for Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19

	8 Internal Audit Annual Fraud Report 2018/19
	Append. 1 for Internal Audit Annual Fraud Report 2018/19

	9 External Audit Fees 2019/20
	10 Risk Management Annual Report 2018/19
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Annual Report 2018/19
	Append. 2 for Risk Management Annual Report 2018/19


